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Financial Highlights

B

China Everbright International Limited
REEKEBRERD A

For the six months ended 30 June

BEARZTHLEAEA

2019 2018 Percentage
“E-hE —Z-0\% change
HK$'000 HK$'000 BAlt
BETT BT S
RESULTS E3
Revenue Wz 16,225,718 11,784,390 38%
EBITDA" BHE R HE
REHEARA 5,500,987 4,414,814 25%
Proft attributable to equity holders ARFERBEA
of the Company FE(E R 2,630,366 2,200,900 20%
Return on shareholders’ equity RREEEFER
- half year (%)* —HE (%) 7.58 9.25 -1.67 ppt
(Restated)
(ER)
Basic earnings per share (HK cents)® GRERBFI(HE): 42.82 47.78 -10%
At 30 June At 31 December
2019 2018
R-B-h%E RZE-N\E Percentage
ABETH  fTZA=t-H change
HK$'000 HK$'000 G
BETT BT %
FINANCIAL POSITION BN
Total assets BEBH 105,313,513 95,121,637 1%
Total liabilities AEEHE 62,003,357 54,426,298 14%
Equity attributable to equity holders ARRERHEA
of the Company FEfhER 35,521,392 33,926,107 5%
Net asset value per share attributable RARERBE AR
to equity holders of the Company (HK9) FREEFE(E%T) 5.782 5523 5%
Gearing ratio (%) BERBLE%) 59 57 2 ppt
Current ratio (%) HENL (%) 173 195 22 ppt
* EBITDA is the profit for the period before deduction of * BFE - BIE - ITERBENR
interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation. BHBRME - HE - rE R
ZNERRI AR o
# The current period return on shareholders’ equity and t ARHEHREESOHEREGRER
basic earnings per share decreased as compared to same BANREERBATE  E-RER
period last year and it was due to the dilution impact of the Z— NFNATKBE100ETH
HK$10 billion rights issue completed in September 2018. P& B S R o
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Business Review and Prospects

RGO R

OPERATING RESULTS

In the first half of 2019, the macro landscape at home
and abroad remained complex and challenging.
Notwithstanding various external threats, China’s
macro economy continued demonstrating resilience
and dynamism, maintaining a steady pace of
growth which was driven by policies that seek
stabilities in 6 major areas and a series of reforms.
During the first half of 2019 (the “period under
review”), thanks to numerous relevant policies and
regulatory measures introduced over the last few
years, China’s environmental protection industry
generally developed a fundamental policy system and
regulatory framework relating to major areas, such
as water environment, soil, solid waste and air, etc.
Tackling serious environmental problems, improving
environmental quality, as well as driving high-quality
and sustainable economic growth remained at the
top of the Chinese government’s agenda.

The General Office of the State Council of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) put forth
the concept of “Zero-Waste Cities” for the first
time in the Plan for Pilot Development of “Zero-
Waste Cities”, which was issued earlier this year.
The plan aims to promote green development and
a green lifestyle, and encourage the reduction of
solid waste at the source as well as recycling and
reuse of waste materials, in order to minimise landfill
waste and mitigate the impact of solid waste on
the environment. Following Chinese President Xi
Jinping’s call for efforts to promote waste sorting in
early June of 2019, a draft amendment to the Law on
the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution
by Solid Waste was submitted for deliberation by
the Standing Committee of the National People’s
Congress, which proposed the implementation of
household waste sorting across the country. These
policies have not only provided a clearer blueprint for
the country’s drive on ecological conservation, but
also set a higher business standard and development
goal for the environmental protection industry,
creating greater growth potential for industry players.
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Business Review and Prospects ¥ EfEEREE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)
As a leading enterprise in China’s environmental
protection industry, as well as a world-renowned
ecological and environmental group, China
Everbright International Limited (the “Company”
r “Everbright International”, together with its
subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) is devoted to
its corporate mission of being “Devoted to Ecology
and Environment for a Beautiful China” and aspires to
its corporate pursuit of “Creating Better Investment
Value and Undertaking More Social Responsibility.”
It accomplished steady growth in various aspects.
The traditional environmental protection business
sectors of the Group remained the mainstay of
and made outstanding contributions to the overall
business, while the new business sectors were on
the rise, indicating all business sectors of the Group
proceeded smoothly.

In the first half of 2019, all staff of the Group worked
closely together with a strong sense of responsibility,
making solid efforts to extend sound momentum
for business development. Thanks to the continued
acceleration of construction progress, the number
of projects under construction hit an all-time high,
driving continual growth in construction service
revenue. Additionally, the Group also saw significant
growth in revenue from operation services, as
it continued reducing costs, expanding income
streams and enhancing efficiency, in addition to the
continued growth seen in the number of operating
projects.

China Everbright International Limited
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

During the period under review, the Group’s
consolidated revenue amounted to HK$16,225,718,000,
an increase of 38% over HK$11,784,390,000
in the same period last year. EBITDA amounted
to HK$5,500,987,000, an increase of 25% over
HK$4,414,814,000 in the same period last year. Profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company was
HK$2,630,366,000, 20% more than HK$2,200,900,000
recorded in the same period last year. Basic earnings
per share for the first half of 2019 was HK42.82 cents,
a decrease of HK4.96 cents from the restated amount
of HK47.78 cents in the same period last year. The
decrease in basic earnings per share was due to
the dilution impact of the HK$10 billion rights issue
completed in September last year. The Group has
ready access to financing channels, with abundant
capital, a reasonable gearing ratio and a healthy
financial position. It also performed well across
all financial indicators. These have laid a solid
foundation for the Group to advance to its next stage
of development, and to become a global leader in
ecological and environmental management.

The Group remains dedicated to creating
value for the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”). To reward the Shareholders for
their support and to take into account the Group’s
long-term sustainable development, the board
(the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of the
Company has declared to pay an interim dividend of
HK13.0 cents per share for the six months ended 30
June 2019 to the Shareholders (2018: HK12.0 cents
per share).
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

In terms of market expansion, during the period
under review, the Group secured a total of 38 new
projects and signed 3 supplementary agreements
for existing projects; the Group also completed the
acquisition of 2 environmental protection companies
to get a number of environmental protection projects,
and secured 90% equity interest of a technology
enterprise that focuses on waste sorting business
through a capital injection, with a total investment of
approximately RMB15.830 billion.

The new projects included 15 environmental energy
projects and 1 supplementary agreement for
existing environmental energy project, 10 greentech
projects and 1 supplementary agreement for
existing greentech project, 11 environmental water
projects and 1 supplementary agreement for existing
environmental water project, and 2 eco-recycling
projects.

In addition, during the period under review, the Group
secured 2 envirotech engineering procurement
construction (“EPC”) projects, 2 environmental water
EPC projects and 1 environmental water operations
and maintenance (“O&M”) project, with a total
contract value of approximately RMB471 million;
4 environmental remediation services, with a total
contract value of approximately RMB37.71 million.

The new projects contributed to an increase of
household waste processing capacity by 12,000
tonnes/day; an increase of water treatment capacity
by 1,090,000 m®/day; an increase of biomass
treatment capacity by 120,000 tonnes/year; and
hazardous waste and solid waste treatment capacity
by 675,000 tonnes/year.

China Everbright International Limited
REIERBERERDE
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Regarding project construction, during the period
under review, the Group’s project construction work
progressed smoothly, continuously driving stable
growth in construction service revenue. In the first
half of 2019, the number of construction sites had
since reached 82, in which 25 projects commenced
operation, while 26 projects commenced
construction. During the period under review, for
the environmental remediation service, there were
15 service items underway and 1 service item in
preparation stage; in addition, the Group completed
and delivered 5 such services. As at the end of June
2019, a total of 8 environmental remediation services
have been completed and delivered.

Regarding operations management, the Group
succeeded in keeping operational costs well under
control and made smooth progress on tariff hikes
for its projects. In the meantime, it continued
promoting the full-fledged implementation of the
environmental, safety, health and social responsibility
(“ESHS”) management system (“ESHS Management
System”) and risk management system across the
Group. The Group also paid great attention to safety
and environmental management, by improving a
series of relevant regulations and rules, launch
themed lectures and training, and developing an
environmental management system that integrates
four major levels of the Group, namely Everbright
International, all business sectors, regional centres
and project companies. This has helped to
promote the standardisation of the procedures of
project investment, construction and operational
management. As a result, the overall operational
quality, efficiency and proficiency have been
enhanced.
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

The Group firmly believes that effective environmental
management, together with timely disclosure of
environmental information, is the driving force
for businesses to fulfil their responsibilities of
pollution prevention and control. This is also in
line with people’s basic rights to pursue a quality
living environment. Starting this year, the Group
has continued fostering activities relating to the
opening-up of environmental protection facilities of
all business sectors of the Group for public visit,
making improvements to standardise the opening-
up activities and turn them into normal practices.
Moreover, by facilitating large environmental
protection promotional initiatives, such as the
“World Environment Day on 5 June”, the projects
of the Group could better spread the awareness
on various issues relating to science popularisation
relating to environmental protection, ecological and
environmental protection, and circular economy.
During the period under review, the Group’s
environmental protection projects received more than
86,000 domestic and foreign visitors from all social
circles.

During the period under review, Everbright
International Environmental Protection Charitable
Foundation of the Group continued proactively
supporting and participating in different kinds of
charity activities, including environmental protection
education, energy-saving, ecological conservation
and community care. It was the lead sponsor of Earth
Hour Hong Kong organised by World Wide Fund For
Nature Hong Kong for the sixth consecutive year.
It also supported Heifer International Hong Kong
branch’s “Read to Feed” fundraising program for the
third consecutive semester. Separately, the staff of
the Group’s project companies continued organising
various activities relating to environmental protection
promotion and charity activities, which has helped to
strengthen the ties and mutual support between the
project companies and local residents.

China Everbright International Limited
REIERBERERDE
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

As a result of the concerted efforts, dedication to
its original aspirations and persistence, the Group
continued to achieve improvements in various
aspects, such as business expansion, sustainable
development, corporate governance and social
responsibility, and therefore attained accolades
from home and abroad, as well as recognitions from
various social circles. During the main event of the
Global Celebrations for World Environment Day 2019,
Everbright International was awarded the “Advanced
Group on Ecological Civilization in China” granted
by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the
PRC (the “MEE”); in the meantime, the Group’s
initiative of opening-up its environmental protection
facilities, which was themed with “I am the Enabler
for a Beautiful China”, was recognised as one of
the “Top Ten Case Studies on Public Participation
2019” granted by the MEE. These two awards well
recognised Everbright International’s proactive
contribution to China’s ecological conservation and
environmental protection. The Group also ranked the
top in the “2019 Top 50 Environmental Enterprises
in China”, which was issued by China Environment
Chamber of Commerce, with China Everbright
Greentech Limited (“Everbright Greentech”) and
China Everbright Water Limited (“Everbright Water”)
ranking the 16th and 21st in the list respectively. On
the same day when the Top 50 list was announced,
Everbright International was also ranked the top
in the “2019 China’s Biomass Power Generation
Industry Ranking Report”, with the Group’s waste
processing capacity and power generation capacity
both surpassing the combined capacities of
enterprises that ranked the 2nd and 3rd places for
either of the two categories. Separately, Mr. Wang
Tianyi, Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
was awarded “Asia’s Best CEO” for the second
consecutive year by Corporate Governance Asia,
a renowned and professional trade publication in
corporate governance, in the Ninth Asian Excellence
Awards 2019, in recognition of his excellent
managerial talents and the Group’s continuous
operational achievements.
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

During the period under review, the Group continued
participating in communications and collaborations
with both domestic and foreign peers. This did not
only enable the Group to share its experience in
business development, operations management,
and technological research and development
(“R&D”), but also allow the Group to take reference
from and learn from its peers’ precious experience.
Among others, as a committee member of China
Council for International Cooperation on Environment
and Development (“CCICED”) and a member of
the Advisory Committee of the Belt and Road
International Alliance for Green Development, Mr.
Wang Tianyi was invited to participate in many
important meetings domestically and internationally,
including the “Belt and Road” Forum, the annual
general meeting of CCICED, Innovative Talk at
Xiong’an New Area, Future China Global Forum
in Singapore, etc. During those events, Mr. Wang
delivered remarkable speeches on a number of key
issues, such as the green development along with
the “Belt and Road” route, zero-waste cities and the
Public-private Partnership (“PPP”) model.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s business footprint
expanded to more than 170 locations across 22
provinces and municipalities in China. The Group had
secured 363 projects in total, commanding a total
investment of over RMB110 billion. The Group also
undertook 24 environmental remediation services, 10
EPC projects and 3 O&M projects.

As Asia’s largest waste-to-energy investor and
operator, up to 30 June 2019, the Group’s
environmental energy sector and greentech sector
signed 126 waste-to-energy projects in total
(including 2 O&M projects), with a total designed
daily household waste processing capacity of
108,550 tonnes. Of which, the Group had 71 waste-
to-energy projects in operation, with a designed
daily household waste processing capacity of
55,200 tonnes; 27 waste-to-energy projects under
construction, with a designed daily household waste
processing capacity of 30,200 tonnes; and 28 waste-
to-energy projects in preparation stages, with a
designed daily household waste processing capacity
of 23,150 tonnes.

China Everbright International Limited
REIERBERERDE
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

During the period under review, the Group’s
environmental energy, greentech and environmental
water projects generated a total revenue of
HK$15,780,753,000, of which construction service
revenue increased by 42% to HK$10,093,454,000
and operation service revenue increased by 40%
to HK$4,181,319,000, as compared with the same
period of 2018. The proportions of revenue are as
follows: construction service revenue 64%, operation
service revenue 26% and finance income 10%.

Major financial data relating to the 3 major
environmental protection business sectors in the first
half of 2019 are summarised in the table below:

For the six months ended 30 June 2019
B2-E-nERA=THLEAER
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CIEEHR - IRRER - KERR
FIRRKBIEE MW ES LEE
#15,780,753,0007T © H ik
AR 7% W %5 & 78 #10,093,454,000
T RZIE-NFRHAEE
42% ¢ BERBE W= BB
4,181,319,0007C * B®=_F— )\
FIHEA K40% - S WELLE A -
BERBEKZG  BERBWHR
BB ADBMEG4I% ~ 26% K
10% °

“E-NFLE¥F  ZAKRRE
B T2 BEERELT

For the six months ended 30 June 2018
HECT-/\ERAZTALLAER

Environmental Environmental Environmental Environmental
Energy  Greentech Water Energy  Greentech Water
Projects Projects Projects Total Projects Projects Projects Total
RRERER BERRER RRAHER ait BREBEE SERRER RRAHER aft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000
EbTn  EWTn  EBTn  EWTn A%TRn BETn BETR #ETR
(Restated) (Restated) ~ (Restated)
(%) (%) (%)
Revenue &
- Construction services  ~ &7 6,477,245 2234898 1,381,311 10,093454 3920125 1871126 1310350 7,101,601
- Operation senvices ~ ~ B2 i 1,952,701 1,916,386 72232 4181319 1144107 1,218,500 616,479 2,979,086
- Finance income ~BIBRA 1,024,128 90,029 391,823 1,505,980 848,420 61,204 382,722 1,292,406
9054074 4241313 2485366 15,780,753 5912652 3150890 2309551 11,373,093
EBITDA RS 5B fE
REBARA 3430,724 1,372,635 832,878 5635731 2644042 1030591 782598 4457281
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

The Group has placed equal emphasis on generating
social and economic benefits, which involves its
commitment to adhering to environmental protection
and social responsibility. The Group has been
proactively promoting energy conservation and
emissions reduction, which has generated significant
results. During the period under review, the Group
processed 11,709,000 tonnes of household waste,
82,000 tonnes of hazardous waste, 2,020,000
tonnes of agricultural and forestry waste, and
generated 5,232,771,000 kWh of green electricity.
This output can support the annual electricity
consumption needs of 4,361,000 households,
which was equivalent to saving 2,093,000 tonnes of
standard coal while reducing carbon dioxide (CO,)
emissions by 7,561,000 tonnes. Meanwhile, the
Group also treated 673,051,000 m® of waste water,
2,179,000 m?® of leachate produced from waste-to-
energy plants, and reduced COD (Chemical Oxygen
Demand) emissions by 279,000 tonnes. Since
the Group’s first environmental protection project
commenced operation in 2005, it has processed an
accumulated 80,930,000 tonnes of household waste,
773,000 tonnes of hazardous waste and 9,315,000
tonnes of agricultural and forestry waste, and
generated 34,334,572,000 kWh of green electricity.
This fulfilled the annual electricity consumption needs
of 28,613,000 households, which was equivalent
to saving 13,734,000 tonnes of standard coal while
reducing CO, emissions by 39,445,000 tonnes,
and preventing 4,463,494,000 trees from being
cut down. The Group has treated an accumulated
8,943,742,000 m® of waste water and 16,112,000 m?
of leachate produced from waste-to-energy plants,
and reduced COD emissions by 3,399,000 tonnes.

China Everbright International Limited
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Environmental Energy

As a core business sector of Everbright
International that has the largest business
scale and makes up the highest portion of the
Group’s overall business, during the period
under review, environmental energy continued
its strong development momentum in 2018.
As at 30 June 2019, environmental energy had
signed 106 waste-to-energy projects (including
2 O&M projects), 13 food waste treatment
projects, 3 leachate treatment projects,
2 methane-to-energy projects, 3 sludge
treatment and disposal projects, 1 fecal
treatment project and 1 fly ash landfill project,
with a total investment of approximately
RMB58.209 billion. These projects have a total
designed annual household waste processing
capacity of approximately 36,208,000
tonnes, which can generate approximately
11,682,850,200 kWh of on-grid electricity
annually. The total designed annual sludge
treatment capacity is approximately 73,000
tonnes, and the total designed annual food
waste treatment capacity is approximately
695,325 tonnes.

In terms of market expansion, during the
period under review, environmental energy
secured a total of 15 new projects and signed
1 supplementary agreement for existing
project, which in aggregate commanded a
total investment of RMB8.290 billion. Among
these projects, there were 13 new waste-to-
energy projects and signed 1 supplementary
agreement, commanding a total investment of
approximately RMB8.097 billion and marking
an increase in the designed daily household
waste processing capacity by 12,000 tonnes,
up by 16% year-on-year. The total designed
daily household waste processing capacity
of 99,200 tonnes has further consolidated
the Group’s leading position in the domestic
environmental protection industry.
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Environmental Energy (continued)

In terms of operations management, during
the period under review, all projects under
environmental energy were in strict compliance
with relevant emission standards and operated
efficiently. In the meantime, these projects
participated in safety and environmental
management training, so as to enrich project
teams’ professional knowledge, provide
advanced management philosophies and
improve their awareness of risk management.
These have laid a solid foundation for the
further optimisation and improvement of
project operations management systems.
Separately, gas emissions of all waste-to-
energy projects fully comply with relevant
national standards, with the daily average level
of online monitored gas emissions superior to
the EU Industrial Emissions Directive 2010/75/EU
(“Euro 2010 Standard”). The operational power
consumption of waste-to-energy plants continued
to reduce, and the electricity generated per
tonne of waste continued to increase. The
electricity generated by waste incinerated has
surpassed 400 kWh per tonne on average,
with integrated power consumption ratio of
approximately 15%.

Regarding project construction, during the
period under review, in environmental energy
sector, 8 waste-to-energy projects completed
construction and commenced operation,
with a total designed daily household waste
processing capacity of 5,700 tonnes; 10
waste-to-energy projects commenced
construction, with a total designed daily
household waste processing capacity of 9,100
tonnes.

China Everbright International Limited
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l. Environmental Energy (continued)
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ESAE )

o

RREER(Z

In the first half of 2019, the Group’s —T-NFL¥EF  KEH
environmental energy sector obtained various IRIREEBRIRIB L ESSIEE
subsidies of approximately RMB97 million in A A R, 7008 7T °
total.
During the period under review, the Group’s REIEEA - NERZIRR
environmental energy projects processed BERTEH A HE B AR
a total of 10,688,000 tonnes of household 10,688,000 - & —F — )\
waste, an increase of 24% compared with Y FRIN24% 0 24t E
the first half of 2018. All projects generated HEE 4 H£3,105,243,000
3,105,248,000 kWh of on-grid electricity in FTERE ®-DZ—)N\F L
total, an increase of 23% compared with the H E I AN23% © IRIR IR
first half of 2018. Environmental energy projects HBBERKRAE « FHI1E
contributed an EBITDA of HK$3,430,724,000, TERBHENRNS R
an increase of 30% compared with the first 7B & 3,430,724,000 JT
half of 2018. Environmental energy projects WZE— )\ F EFEFEN
contributed a net profit attributable to the 30% ° IRIRBLIRIE B & BA
Group of HK$2,153,214,000, an increase of AEEEGEFEMNRELE
24% compared with the first half of 2018. The 2,153,214,0007C * &8 =-F
increase in profit was mainly attributable to the —\F EFFIEIN24% - &
significant growth in construction activities, FIENEEZHEALIEEHA
driving increase in construction services EREEHEEANE A IR
revenue. In addition, operating services FERIERISUES o tEoh - &
revenue increased due to the continuing LIEEMAEREIERERE -
increase in the aggregate processing capacity Fo RATEERBS S -
of the operating projects.
Major operating and financial data relating to —E-NF ¥ FRIRRAE
environmental energy projects during the first JRIBE 2 EBEL BB
half of 2019 are summarised in the table below: BREWNT
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
BE BZ
“E-NE - \F
AE=TH ~NA=TH
ILR{EA 1~ EA
Environmental energy projects ~ B{R&FER
Household waste processing EERREE
volume (tonnes) (1) 10,688,000 8,586,000
On-grid electricity (MWh) TRE2(kRRE) 3,105,243 2,619,600
EBITDA (HK$'000) BHlg BB RER
BEANBNGEETT) 3,430,724 2,644,042



18

Business Review and Prospects ¥ EfEEREE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Environmental Energy (continued)

As at 30 June 2019, the environmental energy
had 64 waste-to-energy projects (including 2
O&M projects) that commenced operations,
with a total investment of approximately
RMB26.622 billion and a total designed daily
household waste processing capacity of
52,400 tonnes. In addition, it had 23 waste-to-
energy projects under construction, with a total
investment of approximately RMB17.847 billion
and a total designed daily household waste
processing capacity of 28,050 tonnes; and 19
waste-to-energy projects in the preparatory
stage, with a total investment of approximately
RMB11.966 billion and a total designed daily
household waste processing capacity of
18,750 tonnes.

Greentech

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had a 69.7%
stake in Everbright Greentech. Everbright
Greentech is a major business sector of
the Group, focusing on integrated biomass
utilisation, hazardous waste and solid waste
treatment, and environmental remediation.
Everbright Greentech was listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

China Everbright International Limited
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Greentech (continued)

As at the end of June 2019, Everbright
Greentech had secured 107 projects, with
52 biomass integrated utilisation projects,
45 hazardous waste and solid waste
treatment projects, 7 solar energy projects
and 2 wind power projects and acquisition
of 1 environmental remediation services
company, which in aggregate commanded
a total investment of RMB28.305 billion.
The designed annual processing capacity of
biomass raw materials was 8,819,800 tonnes,
the household waste processing capacity was
3,412,750 tonnes, and the annual hazardous
waste and solid waste treatment capacity was
approximately 1,839,130 tonnes. There was
a total of approximately 7,164,859,100 kWh
of on-grid electricity and annual heat supply
amounted to approximately 2,712,000 tonnes.
The Group also undertook 24 environmental
remediation services, with an aggregate
contract value of approximately RMB656
million.

Regarding market expansion, during the period
under review, Everbright Greentech secured
10 new projects, signed 1 supplementary
agreement for existing project and completed
the acquisition of 2 environmental protection
companies to get a number of environmental
protection projects which commanded an
investment of RMB3.640 billion. In addition, the
Group undertook 4 environmental remediation
services, with a total contract value of
approximately RMB37.71 million. The newly
designed power generation installed capacity is
7 MW and biomass design processing capacity
is around 120,000 tonnes annually, and the
new steam supply capacity is about 775,000
tonnes annually. The new hazardous waste and
solid waste design processing capacity is about
675,000 tonnes per year.
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Greentech (continued)

Regarding project construction, during the
period under review, 4 projects of Everbright
Greentech completed construction (3 of
them commenced operation), and 3 projects
commenced construction. Aside from that,
4 environmental remediation services started
the remediation work, 5 were completed and
delivered, during the period under review.

During the first half of 2019, Everbright
Greentech obtained various subsidies
exceeding RMB74.67 million in total.

During the period under review, greentech
projects provided approximately
1,792,258,000 kWh of on-grid electricity
in total, an increase of 43% compared
with the corresponding period in 2018.
Greentech projects contributed an EBITDA of
HK$1,372,635,000, a 33% increase compared
with the corresponding period in 2018.
Greentech projects contributed a net profit
attributable to the Group of HK$570,308,000,
a 26% increase compared with the
corresponding period in 2018. The increase in
profit was mainly due to the significant increase
in both construction and operation service
revenues compared with the corresponding
period last year.

China Everbright International Limited
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued) KRB (4F)
Il. Greentech (continued) — - BERR#E)
Major operating and financial data relating to —TE-NE LY EHEERR
greentech projects during the first half of 2019 THE 2= EiE S EBEEE
are summarised in the table below: WMEWNOT :
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
e HE
—E-NF —2-N\F
~A=tH ~A=1H
EREA F~EA
Greentech projects #ERREEH
Waste processing volume NREREE
(tonnes) (W) 632,000 344,000
Biomass raw materials EYE R R
processing volume (tonnes) REE(F) 2,020,000 1,310,000
Hazardous waste processing volume ~ fBERES
(tonnes) (M) 82,000 69,000
On-grid electricity (VMWh) LHEE(OKRE) 1,792,258 1,257,400
EBITDA (HK$'000) BRAIS I MER

BEmMANGEETL) 1,372,635 1,030,591
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Environmental Water

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had a 72.57%
stake in Everbright Water. Everbright Water is
a major business sector of the Group, focusing
on water environment management. On 8 May
2019, Everbright Water was listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, achieving dual
listing status in Singapore and Hong Kong.
Such a dual listing status will help Everbright
Water attract different investors, broaden its
shareholder base, and contribute to its long-
term growth.

As at the end of June in 2019, Everbright Water
secured 91 municipal waste water treatment
projects, 10 industrial waste water treatment
projects, 1 leachate treatment project, 6
water environment treatment projects, 4 water
supply projects, 7 reusable water projects and
2 waste water source heat pump projects,
all of which commanded a total investment
of approximately RMB22.416 billion; it also
secured 2 EPC projects and 1 O&M project,
with a total contract value of approximately
RMB146 million. These projects also have
a designed annual waste water treatment
capacity of approximately 1,785,215,000 m?,
a designed annual reusable water supply
capacity of approximately 75,409,000 mé.
The waste water source heat pump projects
provide heating and cooling services to an area
of 295,000 m2. Additionally, the water supply
projects have a designed annual water supply
capacity of 310,250,000 m?,

China Everbright International Limited
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Environmental Water (continued)

In terms of market expansion, during the period
under review, Everbright Water secured a
total of 11 environmental protection projects
and signed 1 supplementary agreement for
the existing project, which command a total
investment of approximately RMB3.674 billion.
It also secured 2 EPC projects and 1 O&M
project, with a total contract value of
approximately RMB146 million. These projects
contributed to the increases of a daily waste
water treatment capacity by 405,000 m?, a daily
reusable water supply capacity by 85,000 mé?;
and a daily water supply capacity by 600,000 m?3.

During the period under review, Everbright
Water made steady progress in project
construction, with 3 projects commenced
construction and 9 projects completed
construction and commenced operation.

In terms of operations management, 8 waste
water treatment plants under Everbright Water
were approved for tariff hikes during the period
under review, ranging from 4% to 56%.

In the first half of 2019, the Group’s
environmental water sector was granted
various subsidies totaling approximately
RMB8.54 million.

During the period under review, environmental
water projects treated 673,051,000 m? of
waste water, an increase of 10% compared
with the first half of 2018. Environmental
water projects contributed an EBITDA of
HK$832,378,000, an increase of 6% compared
with the first half of 2018. Environmental water
projects contributed a net profit attributable to
the Group of HK$313,547,000, an increase of
12% compared with the first half of 2018. The
increase of net profit was mainly due to growth
in revenue through the expansion of business.
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)
Environmental Water (continued) =

Major operating and financial data relating to
the Group’s environmental water projects in the
first half of 2019 are summarised in the table
below:

REEKEBRERD A

REXE#)

RIRKE(Z)

T —NFEFFREFEKE
¥z FEBEHEPEEUE
WEWMT :

For the For the

six months six months
ended ended

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
BZE EE

—B-NE —EN\F
RA=1H ~A=1H
IEAMEA IER1EA

Environmental water projects BRKBER

Waste water treatment volume (M%)  5/KEFEE (7 53HK)

EBITDA (HK$'000) BRFE - BIE - WER
BEMARNEETL)

Equipment Manufacturing g -

In the first half of 2019, the equipment
manufacturing sector closely followed the
national policy trends and continued to tap
new opportunities. Through the implementation
of key initiatives, such as the introduction of
talent, improvement of technological capacity,
launch of new products, enhancement
of productivity and offering of excellent
services, equipment manufacturing sector
saw the continued improvement of its overall
competitiveness.

673,051,000 612,498,000

832,378 782,598
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued) KRB (4F)

IV. Equipment Manufacturing (continued) m. EEREE)
In terms of market development, the equipment MiSHAAE  EHERER
manufacturing sector signed 14 external sales BN EREAAEZIINEE R
contracts and sold 23 sets of equipment to the 141y - IMEHER B L5123 4

external markets, including 11 sets of grate
furnaces, 8 sets of gas purification systems
and 4 sets of leachate systems. During the first
half of 2019, the sector has secured external
contract sales of equipment amounting to
RMB439 million.

In terms of equipment supply and services,
during the period under review, equipment
manufacturing sector commenced a total of
21 service items, spanning across 9 provinces
in China, including 1 EPC project. In the first
half of 2019, the equipment manufacturing
sector provided 30 grate furnaces to projects
of the Group, an increase in capacity of 173%
compared with the first half of 2018. The
designed daily waste processing capacity of
these grate furnaces reached 14,600 tonnes,
an increase of 163% compared with the
first half of 2018. Moreover, the equipment
manufacturing sector sold 19 sets of grate
furnaces, 11 sets of gas purification systems
and 18 sets of leachate treatment systems.

In terms of after-sales services, the after-
sales market for the equipment manufacturing
sector increased substantially compared with
the first half of 2018. Of which, the number
of the external after-sales service contracts
reached 32, with a total value of RMB12.38
million. During the period under review, the
number of after-sales service items was 91 in
total, recording an increase of 47% compared
with the first half of 2018. These services items
include 64 for the internal projects and 27 for
the external projects.
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Iv.

Equipment Manufacturing (continued)

In addition, phase Il of the Group’s equipment
manufacturing centre in Changzhou City
completed construction during the period
under review. It expanded the equipment
manufacturing capacity of the Group and
provided a robust safeguard in terms of
infrastructure for the rapid development of
equipment manufacturing.

Envirotech

Adhering to technology and innovation
to enhance internal motivation and core
competitiveness is the target pursued
by Everbright International. Additionally,
investment in innovative technology requires
persistence. In the first half of 2019, the
Group conducted substantial reforms in
relation to technological innovation. A
technology management center and a
technology committee were established at
the headquarters of Everbright International,
which further confirmed the importance of
technological innovation on the development
of the Company. The Group also prepared
for the establishment of green technology
innovation and research institute, a zero-
waste city research institute and an ecological
and environmental planning and design
institute. The Group proactively supported
the industrial-academic collaborations within
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater
Bay Area. It proactively experimented with
innovative technology and business models
relating to zero-waste cities and enhanced the
recruitment of leading talent. It also created
values by promoting integrated development.
Meanwhile, it made the best of unique
advanced recourses in technology, industry
and policies, etc, from different cities, riding on
the synergistic effects to promote the Group’s
technology R&D and innovation.

China Everbright International Limited
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

V.

Envirotech (continued)

During the period under review, the Group
continued focusing on solving technical
challenges related to environmental protection
technologies and techniques, with the aims
of aligning with international standards and
transforming the outcome of technology
research and development results. The Group
achieved substantial progress in multiple
technological areas, including the development
of synergetic waste incineration disposal,
plasma melting technology for the treatment
of fly ash, no-staff intelligent power station,
ultra low emission technology, anaerobic
fermentation of kitchen waste, and biomass
power station coupling active carbon.

During the period under review, Everbright
Eco-environment Design Institute under
Envirotech proactively sought opportunities in
various design consulting service projects and
signed 2 EPC projects, and was responsible for
the projects’ design, equipment procurement,
infrastructure management, completion and
handover. In addition, Everbright Analysis and
Testing Center achieved breakthroughs during
the period under review, as it conducted testing
on various fields such as gas, fly ash, bottom
ash, leachate, air and groundwater, etc. The
total amount of internal and external testing
service contracts achieved over RMB2.4
million.
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

V.

Envirotech (continued)

During the period under review, the Group
established a zero-waste city research team
and commenced initial liaison with zero-waste
city pilot areas to provide an infrastructure
plan and explore the “Zero-Waste Cities”
construction model. At the same time, the
Group will continue to implement the industrial-
academic research collaboration model, and
collaborate with Tsinghua University, Zhejiang
University, Qingdao Technological University
and several universities in Hong Kong on solid
waste management, speedy detection of
dioxin, and ultra-low emission technology in
the Greater Bay Area, in facilitating exchange
programmes and cooperation on environmental
issues.

In the first half of 2019, the Group’s envirotech
sector obtained various subsidies of RMB5.67
million in total.

The approved investment in R&D amounts to
RMB200 million in 2019. Total 59 R&D projects
were implemented as planned, achieving
outstanding scientific and technological
achievements, and a total of 75 patents
were granted during the period under review,
including 5 invention patents, 66 utility model
patents and 4 appearance patents. And
11 important essays were published in core
journals and international conferences.

As at the first half of 2019, the Group had
been granted 667 patents in total, including
99 invention patents, 530 utility model patents.
4 appearance patents, and 34 software
copyright licenses.

China Everbright International Limited
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

VI.

Eco-recycling

During the period under review, as a new
business sector of the Group, eco-recycling
actively explored business opportunities in
waste sorting, environmental and sanitary
services, and renewable resources utilisation,
with satisfactory results. The Group is
determined to follow Chinese President Xi
Jinping’s directive for waste sorting and
is carefully taking action to implement the
directive in order to build a full industry chain for
waste sorting, which will lay the foundation for
long term development and lead the industry
development through innovation. From various
operation centers, including waste sorting,
transportation, selection and renewable
resources utilisation, appropriate and mature
technologies and industries have been actively
explored to speed up the development
of a replicable and extendable business
model, and characteristic and vigorous core
competitiveness.
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued) KRB (4F)
VI. Eco-recycling (continued) N ERBERE)

N
s

During the period under review, through
investing RMB45 million to obtain a 90% equity
interest in Shandong QuXiang Information
Technology Company Limited (“Shandong
QuXiang”), the Group has officially entered
into the waste sorting and resource recycling
business sectors. Located in Ji’nan City of
Shandong Province, Shandong QuXiang is
a technology enterprise that focuses on the
waste sorting business. Its main business
covers R&D, manufacturing and the sale of
smart waste recycling machines, as well as
sorting, collecting and transporting waste and
reusing resources through the “Internet +”
model. Riding on its “Dian Recycling” brand,
Shandong QuXiang has launched waste sorting
programs in cities such as Beijing, Ji’'nan,
Suzhou and Chengdu. These programs have
served more than one million people and
are able to sort and recycle nearly 10,000
tonnes of renewable resources annually. The
investment is of great significance for the Group
in establishing a full-chain business system that
ranges from the waste collection at the source
to disposal at the end.
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued) KRB (4F)
VI. Eco-recycling (continued) N EREER(E)

In addition, the eco-recycling sector also
secured Hubei Zhongxiang Environmental
Sanitation Integration Project (“Zhongxiang
Integration Project”) and Yunnan Yuxi
Environmental Sanitation Integration Project
(“Yuxi Integration Project”). Zhongxiang
Integration project includes the establishment
of a waste collection and transportation system,
as well as an intelligent sanitation management
system. As a pilot project for the marketisation
of a full-chain and whole-process household
waste collection and transportation system
in the city, the project serves a population of
approximately 270,000, and clear and transport
approximately 200 tonnes of household waste
daily. Yuxi Integration Project marks Everbright
International’s first environmental protection
project in Yunnan Province. It has a designed
daily waste collection and transportation
capacity of 800 tonnes, and is able to cover the
needs for waste collection and transportation of
the Hongta District of Yuxi City.

International Business

In the first half of 2019, the Group continued
closely following the Chinese government’s
overseas strategies such as the “Belt and
Road” initiative. Accordingly, it fully leveraged
its strengths in investment, operation,
management, technology and equipment,
among others, to exchange and cooperate with
its global peers with an open, cooperative and
win-win attitude, in an effort to increase the
proportion of its overseas business in its overall
business.
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

VILI.

International Business (continued)

As of 30 June 2019, the Group had 3 overseas
environmental protection projects, which are
located in Germany, Poland and Vietnam
respectively. During the period under review,
the Group’s German Ground Solar Energy
Project operated smoothly, providing long-
term and stable support for the local electricity
supply. NOVAGO Sp. z 0.0. is the Group’s first
overseas acquisition project in Poland. During
the first half of 2019, the project proactively
dealt with the challenges in environmental
regulation changes in Poland, focused on
compliance and operational optimisation,
and processed over 305,000 tonnes of
municipal wastes. Since its completion and
commencement of operation in 2018, the
Vietnam Can Tho Waste-to-energy Project
(“Can Tho Project”) has experienced stable
operations and met emission standards. In
the first half of 2019, the project processed
approximately 84,000 tonnes of local domestic
waste, accounting for approximately 60%
the same period of total waste clearance and
transportation in Can Tho City, providing green
electricity of approximately 23,440,000 kWh.
The Group will use the Can Tho Project as a
first step to explore further opportunities in the
environmental protection business in Vietham
and Southeast Asia.

POST-RESULTS EVENTS

The Group signed 5 waste-to-energy projects in
July 2019, with a total investment of approximately
RMB4.386 billion and contributing a designed daily
waste processing capacity of 5,250 tonnes. These
projects include Harbin Yuquan Waste-to-energy
Project in Heilongjiang Province, Nanyang Waste-to-
energy Project Phase | in Henan Province, Jiangshan
Waste-to-energy Project Phase | in Zhejiang
Province, Meizhou Wuhua Waste-to-energy Project
Phase | in Guangdong Province, and Tengzhou
Waste-to-energy Project Phase Il in Shandong
Province.

China Everbright International Limited
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Striving to transform and upgrade its business in
2019, Everbright International achieved significant
progress and results during the first half of the year.
Looking forward, the Group will continue leveraging
its strengths in traditional business sectors, such
as waste incineration, waste water treatment and
hazardous waste treatment, in order to promote
the synergistic development of all its business
sectors. On the other hand, the Group was devoted
to the development of a full industry chain relating
to solid waste treatment, ranging from project
investment, construction and operation to equipment
manufacturing, as well as from disposal at the back
end to waste sorting at the front end in a bid to boost
synergy between different industries and enhance
efficiency.

As an advanced urban management philosophy,
“Zero-Waste Cities” is considered as an urban
development model that is driven by new
development concepts and aims to minimise
landfill waste and environmental impact brought
by solid waste, through the promotion of green
development and green lifestyle, continued effort in
promoting the reduction of waste from its source,
and reuse of waste. Now, Everbright International
has established a systematic development model
with the development of “Zero-Waste Cities” as its
core mission. The Group is a green state-owned
enterprise (“SOE”) that is capable of engaging in and
facilitating the development of “Zero-Waste Cities”. It
is devoted to becoming the largest service provider
for “Zero-Waste Cities”, and is currently exploring a
unique model relating to the development of “Zero-
Waste Cities” that covers waste sorting, reduction of
waste from its source, recycling, harmless treatment
at the back end, among others.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)

Broadly speaking, the Central Committee of the
Communist Party of China, with President Xi Jinping
as the core, has attached great importance to
environmental protection and management in recent
years. Having listed pollution control as one of the
three major tough battles, the Central Committee
has continuously strengthened the effort to protect
ecology, and to explore a new path for high-
quality development that prioritise the ecological
environment and green development, a reflection
that China is moving towards a new era of ecological
conservation. In the face of the development
needs and environment in the new era, Everbright
International will actively pursue new development
philosophies. It will broaden its horizon and improve
passion, improve quality and efficiency, as well as
to highly integrate its dual-identities as an SOE and
foreign enterprise and its markets at home and
abroad. The Group will also pay more attention
to motivating individuals during its development,
developing proper systems to safeguard its
development, encouraging innovation to drive its
development, raising vigilance through risks, and
enhancing corporate culture to unite staff.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)

In terms of its strategy, the Group will establish a
“1+2+4+10” development framework. The number
“1” refers to Everbright International as a whole, a
Hong Kong-listed enterprise that strives to grow
from a domestic industry leader into a world-
leading ecological and environmental group; the
number “2” represents Everbright Greentech and
Everbright Water, 2 listed companies under the
Group; the number “4” stands for 4 listed stocks;
and the number “10” refers to the 10 major business
areas that Everbright International is set to build in
the future. These areas include: (1) environmental
energy, which includes waste-to-energy and
integrated waste treatment; (2) greentech, which
focuses on biomass power generation, industrial
hazardous waste treatment and soil remediation;
(3) environmental water, which includes municipal
waste water treatment and water environment
treatment; (4) eco-recycling, which focuses on waste
sorting and recycling of resources; (5) greenergy,
which aims at energy conservation industry,
including energy-saving lighting for urban streets;
(6) equipment manufacturing, which is devoted to
expanding types of equipment products and seeking
synergetic development with other business sectors
of the Group; (7) international business, which
will proactively and steadily expand international
business along the “Belt and Road” route; (8) the
ecological and environmental planning and design
institute, which targets to become a national
first-class planning and design institute through
acquisition and restructure; (9) green technological
innovation and research institute, which will have
presence in 4 cities, namely Hong Kong, Shenzhen,
Nanjing and Qingdao, with an aim of becoming
a world-class center that is specialised in green
technological innovation and commercialisation
of research results; (10) zero-waste city research
institute, which will focuses on exploring proper
technologies and business models for the
development of “Zero-Waste Cities”. On the back
of the robust and synergistic development of these
10 business areas, the Group is set to achieve high-
quality and sustainable development.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)

The Group believes that, supported by the strategies
and resources of China Everbright Group, as well
as the trust and recognition from all sectors of the
community, it will be able to develop into a world-
leading ecological and environmental group within 5
to 10 years, by continuing its steadfast working style
and sparing no effort to advance.

China Everbright International Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB WA

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s total assets
amounted to approximately HK$105,313,513,000
with net assets amounting to HK$43,310,156,000.
Net asset value per share attributable to equity
holders of the Company was HK$5.782 per share,
representing an increase of 5% as compared to
HK$5.523 per share as at the end of 2018. As at
30 June 2019, gearing ratio (total liabilities over
total assets) of the Group was 59%, representing an
increase of 2 percentage points as compared to 57%
as at the end of 2018.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group adopts a prudent approach to cash and
financial management to ensure proper risk control
and low cost of funds. It finances its operations
primarily with internally generated cash flow and loan
facilities from banks. As at 30 June 2019, the Group
had cash and bank balances of HK$12,833,617,000,
representing a decrease of HK$3,140,863,000 as
compared to HK$15,974,480,000 at the end of
2018. Most of the Group’s cash and bank balance,
representing approximately 97%, was denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

BORROWINGS

The Group is dedicated to improving banking facilities
to reserve funding to support the development
of the environmental protection business. As
at 30 June 2019, the Group had outstanding
borrowings of HK$44,298,057,000, representing
an increase of HK$5,771,890,000 as compared
to HK$38,526,167,000 as at the end of 2018.
The borrowings included secured interest-bearing
borrowings of HK$18,354,755,000 and unsecured
interest-bearing borrowings of HK$25,943,302,000.
The borrowings are mainly denominated in Renminbi,
representing approximately 56% of the total, and the
remainder is denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US
dollars and Polish zloty. Most of the borrowings are
at floating rates. As at 30 June 2019, the Group had
banking facilities of HK$58,721,334,000, of which
HK$18,491,747,000 have not been utilised. The
banking facilities are of 1 to 19 years terms.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Company’s financial statements are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
functional currency of the Company. The Group’s
investments made outside Hong Kong (including
mainland China) may incur foreign exchange risks.
The Group’s operations are predominantly based
in mainland China, which makes up over 90% of its
total investments and revenue. The Group’s assets,
borrowings and major transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi, and as such, it forms a
natural hedging effect. With this in mind, the Group
also pursues an optimal allocation of borrowings in
different currencies while setting appropriate levels
of borrowing in non-base currencies, and adoption
of proper financial instruments to closely manage
foreign exchange risk.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Certain banking facilities of the Group were secured
by revenue and receivables in connection with
the Group’s service concession arrangements,
bank deposits, mortgages over property, plants
and equipment, right-of-use assets and the equity
interests of certain subsidiaries of the Company. As
at 30 June 2019, the aggregate net book value of
pledged assets and equity interests in subsidiaries
amounted to HK$37,912,407,000.

COMMITMENTS

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had purchase
commitments of HK$6,999,729,000 outstanding in
connection with the construction contracts.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2019, the Company issued financial
guarantees to 1 subsidiary. The Board does not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against
the Company under the guarantees. The maximum
liability of the Company as at 30 June 2019 for the
provision of the guarantees was HK$383,988,000.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY’S
RIGHTS ISSUE

On 14 August 2018, the Company proposed to
raise fund of approximately HK$9,962 million before
expenses, by way of issuing 1,660,263,592 rights
shares to the qualifying Shareholders on the basis
of 10 rights shares for every 27 existing shares of
the Company held on the record date (the “Rights
Issue”) at the subscription price of HK$6.00 per
rights share. The Rights Issue was completed in
September 2018. The Directors consider that it is
prudent to finance the Group’s long-term growth
by way of the Rights Issue which not only enhances
the Group’s financial flexibility, but also allows all the
qualifying Shareholders the opportunity to participate
in the growth and grasp the benefit of the future
development of the Group through the Rights Issue.

The actual net proceeds of the Rights Issue were
approximately HK$9,924 million. As disclosed in
the prospectus of the Rights Issue dated 30 August
2018 (the “Prospectus”), the Group intends to
apply the net proceeds from the Rights Issue to:
(1) implement its existing and future waste-to-energy
projects and other environmental protection projects;
(2) pursue other environmental protection businesses
including but not limited to technological R&D,
equipment manufacturing, waste sorting and
management, and atmospheric monitoring and
testing services; and (3) general working capital of
the Group and repayment of bank loans. Please refer
to the Company’s announcements dated 14 August
2018, 14 September 2018 and 20 September 2018
and the Prospectus for further details.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY'S AR aMERFIEHRIBEA® (#)
RIGHTS ISSUE (continued)
During the period under review, details of the use of R EIFEEARN - HEAEZREZH

proceeds of the Rights Issue are as follows: BEBWT
Intended use of the net Intended use and
proceeds (appr.) Actual use of net expected timeline of the
as previously disclosed  proceeds up to remaining amount of
Net proceeds raised in the Prospectus 30 June 2019 (appr.) net proceeds (appr.)
(appr.) FRIEMRERRE (EZT-NERA R IR
ERMEHIETEE ZEHMEETIEL =THE®AZ (H&)  HERER
(#&0) HERB(NE) FSFRIE(NE) BHREE

1. HK$5,947,000,000 (about HK$3,960,000,000 for ~ HK$3,548,830,000 was  The remaining
60% of the net proceeds)  waste-to-energy projects used for waste-to-energy unused amount of

to implement existing for the next 12 months.  projects. HK$2,398,170,000 is
and future waste-to- ##3,960,000,0007CF {E 75%3,548,830,0007C2 A intended to be used for
energy projects and other RARTZEAZARE MuREEESR - waste-to-energy projects
environmental protection ~ EIEH o in the six months ending
projects 31 December 2019 and
7&15,947,000,0007C HK$1,987,000,000 for the years after.
(M1EFr B RUEBEER60%) greenfield projects and F|sh R0 AR A
BIERERA RBEMAIE potential acquisitions of 2,398,170,0007C % AR
BEEE REMIRREE  environmental protection HE_E-NFT+=A
projects for the next 12 to =+—HUEAEARE
24 months or more. HEMNIRBTEIER o

781,987,000,0007T A {E
RAR+=—Z=+m{EA
A F 2 TIE REE
RORIRIE B AOURER -
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY'’S
RIGHTS ISSUE (continued)

Intended use of the net
proceeds (appr.)
as previously disclosed

Actual use of net
proceeds up to

41

AR BVEPIRPTISSRIB R & ()

Intended use and
expected timeline of the
remaining amount of

Net proceeds raised in the Prospectus 30 June 2019 (appr.) net proceeds (appr.)

(appr.) REAERRERKE BE-T-NEXA ARSI F R
EXRMEFAFH ZBRIREFEL =tACEAZ (M%) - REAZER
(h80) e A (08) FRS#E (%) BEEEE

2. HK$2,478,000,000 (about HK$800,000,000 for ~ HK$274,440,000was  The remaining

25% of the net proceeds)
for pursuing other

environmental protection
businesses including but

not limited to technological

R&D, equipment
manufacturing, waste
sorting and management,
and atmospheric
monitoring and testing
services
7&2,478,000,0007T. (4
BTG IE .2 26%) A

FEREMRAEY 81

BARNBITHE - Kfa
& RN REEEN
RARRAEERARYE

development of other
environmental protection
businesses for the next
12 months.
7#800,000,0007CAifE
AR+ 8 A 2 EfiR
REBHBE o

HK$1,678,000,000 to
meet the continuous
development of other
environmental protection
businesses in the next

12 to 24 months.
75%1,678,000,0007T A {E
EART-—Z=+m{EA
Wi B EMRRF B
BEE -

used in the development
of technological R&D,
equipment manufacturing,
waste sorting and
management, and
atmospheric monitoring
and testing services.

& 1274,440,0007cE A
MER AR © KHE
& RS BEERNR
RERIR AR FRT o

HK$30,168,000 was
used in the development
of food waste treatment
projects.
#130,168,0007cE AR
BREFNREEER -

unused amount of
HK$2,173,392,000 is
intended to be used

for other environmental
protection businesses in
the six months ending
31 December 2019 and
the years after.
RIBRERROBE
2,173,392,0007C 1 R
HE-_T-N&+=A
=+—BIEAERARItE
HEMHMIRRET o
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY’S AR R AMAEFRIERRE)
RIGHTS ISSUE (continued)

Intended use of the net Intended use and
proceeds (appr.) Actual use of net expected timeline of the
as previously disclosed  proceeds up to remaining amount of
Net proceeds raised in the Prospectus 30 June 2019 (appr.) net proceeds (appr.)
(appr.) FRIEHRERRE H2-Z-N5-A =R B A IR
SEMETIESSE ZEBMEEREZ =TREHAZ (08 BERBER
(#1%) RERR (%) FrE S8 EEHEE
3. HK$1,499,123,000 (about HK$499,123,000 for HK$1,499,123,000 was  The amount of the net
15% of the net proceeds) general working capital  used for repayment proceeds for general
for general working of the Group. of bank loans for the working capital of the
capital of the Group and ~ /5%499,123,0007c/fE  financial year ended Group and repayment of
repayment of bank loans  ANEE 7 —REEES o 31 December 2018. bank loans had been fully
7#1,499,123,0007T (4 REIE=ZF—N\F+=F utiised.
EPASHIFE16%) A HK$1,000,000,000 =T-HIEABEER - RBEFEE—REEE

{EREE, —#R4EEAS  repayment of bank loans. &#1,499,123,0007T S RABNEBERITERN
KA ERFITER 7&%1,000,000,000LA ERAEBERITER .  FEFECZHIA -
BRRITER -

The Directors considered that the net proceeds of the EEFR A @ HKRMEHIBFHEED
Rights Issue were applied in general in accordance  EEEIZRELRIEHKRERAMHEE
with the intention and expected timeframe as <~ B#&)RTEAIRE R T AR -
previously disclosed in the Prospectus.
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INTERNAL MANAGEMENT

The Group adheres to the management principle
of “People-oriented, Pragmatism, Creativity
and Systematic Management”, and has built a
comprehensive management structure to maximise
efficiency. The Company’s management holds
Management Decision Committee meeting on a
monthly basis to review current operations and
management, with a view to ensuring the sustainable
development of the Company. The responsibilities of
each functional department and business sector of
the Company are clear with various comprehensive
management systems. Its sound internal control
procedures are implemented effectively. The
Company’s Internal Audit Department performs its
internal monitoring functions to ensure that each
functional department and business sector could
strictly comply with the relevant internal control
requirements.

The Group is committed to building a comprehensive
risk management culture and develops the risk
management model of “Integration of Policy,
Procedure and System with Risk-oriented”, to
comprehensively strengthen risk management and
risk control. During the period under review, the
Group updated the list of risk factors according
to the progress of the implementation of risk
management system, with a view to continuously
enhancing the systematisation and normalisation
level of risk management. In order to further enhance
its structure of headquarters, as well as to improve
its management efficiency and risk control capability
of the headquarters, the Company newly set up
the Procurement Management Centre, the Budget
Management Centre, the Research and Development
Centre, the Technology Management Centre and
the Technology Committee, and appointed Project
Investment Advisors.
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INTERNAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

During the period under review, the Group continued
to uphold the fundamental principle of “maintaining
safe and stable operations while ensuring compliance
with relevant emission standards”. In terms of
safety, environment and occupational health, it
proactively carried out routine inspections. Apart
from incorporating “Safe Production Month” into its
operation, the Group paid close attention to safety
management and carried out safety risk assessments
to ensure all projects — whether under construction
or in operation — strictly comply with all safety
policies. These steps secured the stable operation of
environmental protection projects including waste-
to-energy, integrated biomass utilisation, waste water
treatment projects, etc, while enhancing their scale
and economic benefits as well. Besides, the Group
continued to push forward project construction
works while accelerating the finalisation of projects
in the preparatory stage. It also went through due
formalities to ensure that all project construction
works were carried out in compliance with laws
and regulations. At the same time, the Group
continued to put in more efforts in construction
safety management to ensure professional and safe
construction.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Human Resources are the key strategy of corporate
development which require appropriate personnel to
execute this core strategy. The Group highly values
its human resources management and puts great
emphasis on staff training. It believes that realising
the full potential of its employees is crucial to its long-
term growth. The Group continued to improve its
human resources through internal training as well as
local, overseas, and on-campus recruitment.
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HUMAN RESOURCES (continued)

During the period under review, to cope with the need
of its business development, the Group established
the Ecological Environment Institute to arrange for
appropriate training centrally. Training programmes
for general managers and construction directors,
training courses for safety and environmental
management and training courses for public
communication staff were also held to enhance
management’s and staff’s professional and general
competence through continuous education. All along
employees of the Group are provided with a platform
for personal development. During the period under
review, the Group conducted internal selection
and recruitment for vacancies in headquarters.
Employees with vision and self-confidence are
encouraged to apply for internal transfer so that they
can unleash their full potential in their favorite job
positions. In order to enhance the efficiency of human
resources management and to encourage existing
staff to refer suitable candidate(s) to the Group, the
Group issued a series of management measures
for human resources, which included “Management
Measures for Staff Recruitment”, “Management
Measures for Reserve Cadres”, “Requirements on
the Selection and Appointment of Senior and Middle
Management” and the “Management Measures
and Awards for Talent Referral by Internal Staff”. In
addition to the issuance of the “Measures for the
Establishment of Talent Cultivation Base”, the Group
selected 16 operating projects as talent cultivation
bases to provide internship opportunities for its future
management and senior technical staff.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had approximately
11,700 employees. Employees within the Group
are remunerated according to their qualifications,
experience, job nature, performance and with
reference to market conditions. Apart from a
discretionary performance bonus, the Group also
provides other benefits such as medical insurance
and a mandatory provident fund scheme to
employees in Hong Kong.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
During the period under review, the Group
continuously implemented relevant work of the
risk management system to effectively control the
principal risks faced by the Group.

Policy changing risk: If the government implements
new industry policy(ies) to raise the discharge
standard and/or emission standard and/or to reduce
finance and taxation policy support, the profit of
the Group will definitely be affected in the short run.
The Group strengthened its communications with
regulatory authorities and timely improved its existing
management system and standardised procedures
according to changes to regulations and standards.
Adopting the market expansion strategy of “tactic
operation with flexible approaches”, the Group made
adjustments proactively according to change in
policy. The existing control measures are effective as
a whole.

Environmental compliance risk: The Group’s projects
in operation are all under stable operation. However,
excessive emission of pollutants due to failure to
adequately identify ESHS issues during operation,
sudden change in external environment and
companies in the surrounding areas and human error
will affect the degree of environmental compliance of
the Group and the stability of operation. The Group
pays high attention to environmental compliance
and production safety. Through enhancing third
party inspection, constructing on-line environmental
information monitoring platform and setting up
comprehensive environmental management system,
the possibility of environmental non-compliance
could be minimised effectively. The existing control
measures are effective as a whole.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Construction project management risk: At the peak
of project construction, the Group is exposed to
the risk of negligence of site management staff and
non-compliance with tendering procedure. The
Group’s existing rules and regulations for project
construction are comprehensive. Through carrying
out multi-dimensional inspections and assessments
on projects under construction, the Group enhances
the standardisation of construction sites. At the
same time, the Group strictly implements its tender
management system, continuously expands its
supplier base and chooses high-calibre business
partners. The existing control measures are effective
as a whole.

Accounts receivable risk: If the government’s or
client’s ability to settle service charge is affected
due to financial difficulties, or if any waste-to-
energy project or biomass integrated utilisation
project cannot obtain national subsidy temporarily
after its commencement of commercial operation
due to failure to obtain approval for registration of
its on-grid power tariffs in the subsidy catalogue,
the balance of accounts receivable and amount
overdue will increase. The Group strictly followed the
“Management Method on Accounts Receivable” and
analysed the overall status of accounts receivable
regularly. Based on the analysis, the Group set
receivable recovery objectives and set up recovery
plans to ensure the reasonableness of ageing and the
effective operation of recovery mechanism as well as
making transitional funds arrangements. The existing
control measures are effective as a whole.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Staff management risk: Critical position(s) unfilled due
to resignation of experienced officer(s), the negative
impacts arising from infringement of the Company’s
intellectual property rights and patented technology
and non-compliance with code of professional
conduct and ethics or non-compliance with laws
and regulations by employee(s) will adversely affect
the interest or reputation of the Company. Through
cooperation with reputable universities to recruit
talent, the Groups seeks to establish an effective
mechanism for talent introduction. To improve the
matching degree between position demand and
staff ability, the Group carried out assessment and
recruitment of professional and technical staff.
Besides, it organised targeted training. The Group also
carried out internal and external audits and different
kinds of inspection work to prevent moral hazard. The
existing control measures are effective as a whole.

Market competitive risk: The substantial influx of
competitors into the environmental industry not
only intensified competitions in the industry but
also led to rapid change of business model. Market
competition, particularly in the sectors of waste-
to-energy and biomass integrated utilisation, has
become unprecedentedly fierce. In order to further
enhance its core competitiveness, the Group newly
established Research and Development Centre and
Technology Management Centre at the headquarters.
Besides, China Everbright Green Technology
Innovation Research Institute Limited and China
Everbright Zero Waste Cities Research Institute
Limited were established. The research institute to be
set up in Shenzhen is also in the preparatory stage.
Through the establishment of the above-mentioned,
the Group seeks to strengthen forward-looking
research and judgment on the development trend
of the industry and the planning of technological
development. The existing control measures are
effective as a whole.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Not-in-my-backyard risk: Poor environmental
performance of peers and business partners, and
the public’s misunderstanding over environmental
industry might adversely affect the business
development of the Group. By disclosing
information and opening up to the public, the Group
enhanced its corporate promotion. Following the
directions of the government, the Group positively
promoted environmental protection knowledge
and environmental standards and cleared up
misunderstanding and public negative sentiment
through personal experience. The existing control
measures are effective as a whole.

Cost control risk: The fluctuation of raw material
price (such as environmental consumables,
equipment and spare parts and major materials for
construction) due to market change will lead to the
increase in operating costs and affect the stability of
operation. The Group newly established Procurement
Management Centre and Budget Management
Centre at the headquarters, in order to strengthen
the cost control of raw material procurement
and project construction, improve the delicacy
management of cost and enhance budget control.
In order to strengthen bargaining power and lower
procurement costs, the Group established regional
centralised procurement platform for each business
sector to carry out centralised tendering process for
environmental consumables periodically. The existing
control measures are effective as a whole.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
MANAGEMENT

The Group pays close attention to the operational
impacts brought to the environment and society.
An Environmental and Social Management System
("ESMS”) has been established in accordance
with the Safeguard Policy Statement of the Asian
Development Bank and other international best
practices. The ESMS covers the entire cycle of
projects from early-stage planning and design
till the final-stage operation and management,
with specific requirements in place in relation
to environmental and social screening and
categorisation, resettlement, indigenous peoples,
environmental impact assessment, information
disclosure, consultation and participation, gender
equality, due diligence and review, and monitoring
and reporting. The system ensures the Group’s
activities comply with the up-to-date environmental
and social safeguard principles and requirements
internationally. To enhance integration effectiveness
between system requirements and practical
operations, and to manage the entire process of
environmental and social management work, the
Group fully implemented the ESHS Management
System in 2016. The system comprises management
standards to provide procedural guidelines on issues
identification, auditing, incident investigation and
reporting, work injury treatment and contractor ESHS
management. Implementation of the system has
not only promoted sustainable development within
the Group, but also extended its safety culture and
policies to the supply chain.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
MANAGEMENT (continued)

The operating and environmental performance of the
Group’s projects strictly adheres to the standards
and requirements of their respective environmental
impact assessment reports. The Group also takes
into consideration the expectations of neighbouring
communities. The key regulations and standards
which are highly relevant to the Group’s business
include the Environmental Protection Law of the
PRC, Law of the PRC on Environmental Impact
Assessment, Water Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the PRC, Atmospheric Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the PRC, Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution
by Solid Waste, Production Safety Law of the PRC,
Labour Law of the PRC, Hong Kong’s Employment
Ordinance; the Standard for Pollution Control on
Municipal Solid Waste Incineration (GB18485-2014)
and the Euro 2010 standard (for environmental
energy projects), the Emission Standard for Air
Pollutants of Thermal Power Plants (GB132283-
2011) (for biomass power generation projects under
greentech sector), and the Discharge Standard
for Pollutants of Municipal Waste Water Treatment
Plants (GB18918-2002) (for environmental water
projects), etc.

The Group strives to ensure compliant emissions and
the five “Firsts”: the first to adopt the European Union
Waste Incineration Directive 2000/76/EC; the first to
connect and share real-time project emission data
with local environmental protection departments; the
first to disclose online hourly average emission data
of all operating waste-to-energy projects; the first to
open up its operating waste-to-energy projects to
welcome public supervision; and the first to open up
environmental protection facilities across all business
sectors to the public.
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Disclosure of Interests
BEEREY

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2019, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and the Company’s chief executives
and their respective associates in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and/or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:
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Long position in shares of the Company REQATRDZHFR
Approximate
percentage of
Number of total issued
shares shares
Nature of (ordinary shares) HILEET
Name of Director Capacity interest RinEE Riniag
EEiR 3] EwItE (L®R) Bt
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond Beneficial Owner Personal 2,740,740 0.04%
gl BaEAA BA
Fan Yan Hok, Philip Beneficial Owner Personal 11,154,810 0.18%
BB BHEBA BA
Note: Based on 6,142,975,292 shares of the Company inissue ~ Miit : RER T —-hFSA=Z+HEH

as at 30 June 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

Long position in shares of Everbright Greentech,
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EENBRSTRABERD -
RN REFTER 2 ER

KRB (4)

RARQ Tz & B2 R KR

a listed subsidiary of the Company BREARDZHFR

Approximate

percentage of

Number of total issued

shares shares tel

Nature of (ordinary shares) LB BT

Name of Director Capacity interest BSnEE! R in B2

EEEd 15 ERItE (LER) Aot

Wong Kam Chung, Raymond Beneficial Owner Personal 67,549 Below 0.01%

BT EXBBA A 1720.01%

Hu Yanguo Beneficial Owner Personal 287,000 0.01%
HHIEE EHEBA {EPN

Qian Xiaodong Beneficial Owner Personal 182,000 Below 0.01%

HEHER EHEAA A 1£740.01%

Fan Yan Hok, Philip Beneficial Owner Personal 100,494 Below 0.01%

BB EREEA AA 1£180.01%

Note: Based on 2,066,078,000 shares of Everbright Greentech
in issue as at 30 June 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, none
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company
and their respective associates had interests or
short positions in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company, or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Mzt s RER-Z-AFRA=Z+THHRK
& EIRIRE #1171 () 2,066,078,000
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B EXFrEIN R—F—NEF
NA=TRH BEZRARAES
TRABRESFEAZBEAL
BB A QA sk B AR AR B A B
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B REHIGDI)EIL25R EARTF
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the six months ended 30 June
2019 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
holding companies or fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 30 June
2019, the following persons (other than any Directors
or chief executives of the Company) were substantial
Shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) and had
interests or short positions in shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange:
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of shares/ total issued
underlying shares shares (ot 1)
(ordinary shares) o] TRk S
Name of company Capacity Nature of interest &1 /487 Tty 4an
NSEAH L) Ealtg #A(LEk) Bt )
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (‘Huijin”) Interest of controlled  Corporate interest ~ 2,576,710,137(L) 41.95%
(notes (2) and (3) corporation RAlER
mRESREBREEARAES]) REGIAE M ER
(MEQRE)
China Everbright Group Ltd. Interest of controlled  Corporate interest ~ 2,576,710,137(L) 41.95%
(‘China Everbright Group’) (note (3) orat|on NSl
o el S

(ThERER) (33xm)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT (BB MR AR (#)
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES (continued)
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of shares/ total issued
underlying shares Shares e )
(ordinary shares) EO] TRESh)
Name of company Capacity Nature of interest &t/ Bk PREEE
NGESE i EaE #A (L) Epalell
Citigroup Inc. Interest of controlled  Corporate interest 490,076,759(L) 7.97%
corporation/ NGl (noteffizE(4)
approved lending 39,082,156(S) 0.63%
agent 450,617,897(P) 7.33%
SRS AR/
BABEREA
GIC Private Limited Investment manager  Corporate interest 308,395,324(L) 5.02%
REEE NalER
(L) = Long Position LEFE
(S) = Short Position (S)E%R

(P) = Lending Pool

Notes:
Based on 6,142,975,292 shares of the Company in issue (1) RERZT-AFRA=THOER

M

@

as at 30 June 2019.

(PIE AT L5 B0 ARAD
MiaE

A)E B1TR196,142,975,292/6 51 & -

Huijin is indirectly wholly owned by the State Council of the () E&dH BhREZE2ERE 1

PRC and holds 55.67% equity interests of China Everbright BAPBEAKEES567%ME - &
Group. It is deemed to be interested in the 2,576,710,137 WRANPBEEREEFHEFEZ

shares indirectly held by China Everbright Group.

2,576,710,137 AR 1D P A g -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(8) China Everbright Group holds 100% of the issued shares
of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited (“CE
Hong Kong”). CE Hong Kong holds (i) 100% of the issued
shares of Datten Investments Limited (“Datten”) which in
turn holds 55% of the issued shares of Guildford Limited
(“Guildford”); (ii) 100% of the issued shares of Everbright
Investment & Management Limited (“EIM”); and (i) 45%
of the issued shares of Guildford, respectively. Out of the
2,576,710,137 shares, 2,430,442,287 shares are held by
Guildford. The remaining 146,267,850 shares are held by
EIM. Accordingly, China Everbright Group are deemed to
be interested in 2,430,442,287 shares held by Guildford

and 146,267,850 shares held by EIM.

(4)  The long position of 490,076,759 shares of the Company
includes derivative interests in 15,817,222 underlying
shares of the Company which are derived from unlisted and

cash settled derivatives.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, the
Company had not been notified of any other persons
(other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company or substantial Shareholders) who had
interests or short positions in shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section

336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company and its subsidiaries have no share

option schemes.
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Corporate Governance

AN Al fis s
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

The Group strives to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance as it believes good
corporate governance practices are increasingly
important for maintaining and promoting the
confidence of the Shareholders. They are crucial
for the development of the Group’s business and
protection of the Shareholders’ interests. The Group
upholds the management principle of “People-
oriented, Pragmatism, Creativity and Systematic
Management”, and through a set of rules and
regulations, has continuously strengthened internal
control and risk management system. Furthermore,
by full and timely public disclosure of information,
the Group has maintained transparency and
accountability which also enhanced its corporate
values.

The Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules have been duly
adopted by the Board as the code on corporate
governance practices of the Company.

The Company complied with all Code Provisions as
set out in the CG Code throughout the six months
ended 30 June 2019.

The Company will continue to commit itself to
enhancing its corporate governance appropriate to
the conduct and growth of its business, and from
time to time, to reviewing its corporate governance
practices to ensure the same comply with the CG
Code and align with the latest developments.

Please refer to the Company’s 2018 annual report
published in April 2019 for more information on our
corporate governance practices.
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THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 5 executive Directors
and 4 independent non-executive Directors
(“INED(s)”). The number of INEDs represents more
than one-third of the Board and at least one of whom
possess the appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required by the Listing Rules. Details
of the composition of the Board are set out in the
“Corporate Information” section. The INEDs offer
diversified experience and professionalism, serve
to advise the Board on strategic development and
provide checks and balances for safeguarding the
interest of the Shareholders and the Group as a
whole.

During the period under review, the Board has
met regularly. When necessary, written resolutions
accompanying related explanatory materials, are
circulated to the Directors for approval in between
regular meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance,
the Board has established the following 5 Board
committees with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with their respective authority and
duties:

1. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, currently comprising
3 INEDs, namely Mr. Mar Selwyn (Chairman),
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip and Mr. Zhai Haitao, is
primarily responsible for reviewing the Group’s
financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems, internal and
external audit and such other financial and
accounting matters of the Group, etc. Under
its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is
required to oversee the relationship between
the Company and Ernst & Young (“EY”), the
external auditor of the Company. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(“HKEX").
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

1.

Audit Committee (continued)

During the period under review, the Audit
Committee reviewed with the management
and EY, including but not limited to the
accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, significant audit matters such
as significant accounting estimates and
judgmental areas, and discussed the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems
and financial reporting matters, etc, including
review of the annual results for the year ended
31 December 2018 and reports from Internal
Audit Department and Risk Management
Department of the Company.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee currently
comprises Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip (Chairman),
an INED, Mr. Mar Selwyn, an INED, Mr. Suo
Xuquan, an INED, Mr. Wong Kam Chung,
Raymond, the executive Director and the Chief
Financial Officer, Mr. Hu Yanguo, the executive
Director and the Deputy General Manager, and
Ms. Guo Ying, the General Manager of Internal
Audit Department and Risk Management
Department of the Company. Its main duties
are to provide oversight of the Company’s
risk management programs, and to review the
effectiveness of the management’s processes
for identifying, assessing, mitigating and
monitoring enterprise-wide risks. The terms of
reference of the Risk Management Committee
had been established in writing.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Risk Management Committee (continued)
During the period under review, the Group
carried out risk assessment and analysis
to identify the annual changes in risks, and
the internal control assessment to ensure
the effectiveness of the internal control
management. The Risk Management
Committee reviewed the progress of risk
control and management system for the year
of 2018, major risk management in 2018, the
2019 risk management work plan as well as the
annual risk assessment results of 2019.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently
comprises Mr. Cai Yunge (Chairman), an
executive Director and the Chairman of the
Board, Mr. Wang Tianyi, the executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer, and all the
4 INEDs, namely Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip,
Mr. Mar Selwyn, Mr. Zhai Haitao and Mr. Suo
Xuquan. Its primary responsibilities include but
not limited to reviewing annually the structure,
size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board,
reviewing and reporting the Board diversity
to the Board, assessing the independence
of the INEDs, making recommendations to
the Board, by taking into account the Board
Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy,
on appointment or re-appointment or re-
designation of Directors and assessing the
qualifications and competencies of the
candidates, so as to ensure that all nominations
are fair and transparent. The terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee are available on
the websites of the Company and HKEX.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

4.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently
comprises Mr. Zhai Haitao (Chairman), an
INED, Mr. Cai Yunge, the executive Director
and the Chairman of the Board, and 3 other
INEDs, namely Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip,
Mr. Mar Selwyn and Mr. Suo Xuquan. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee, which are available on the websites
of the Company and HKEX, set out the duties
of the Remuneration Committee, including
but not limited to determining, with delegated
responsibilities by the Board, the remuneration
packages of the individual executive Directors
and senior management.

During the period under review, the
Remuneration Committee enforced the
policy for the remuneration of the executive
Directors, assessed performance of the
executive Directors, and reviewed the 2019
bonus proposal, 2018 bonus payment
and the remuneration package of the
individual executive Directors and the senior
management of the Company.

Disclosure Committee

The Disclosure Committee currently comprises
4 executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wang
Tianyi (Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer,
Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, the Chief
Financial Officer, Mr. Hu Yanguo, the Deputy
General Manager and Mr. Qian Xiaodong, the
Deputy General Manager as well as Mr. An
Xuesong, the Deputy General Manager and
Ms. Poon Yuen Ling, the Company Secretary.
The Board has delegated the day-to-
day execution of its continuous disclosure
obligations to the Disclosure Committee to
ensure the compliance of the Company with its
disclosure obligations. The terms of reference
of the Disclosure Committee had been
established in writing.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Other than the 5 Board committees above, the
Management Decision Committee, being chaired
by the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, is
responsible for handling the day-to-day business
activities and making collective decisions on major
matters relating to the Group’s daily business
operations, management and personnel matters, etc.
The Management Decision Committee also takes
charge of reviewing the investment projects of the
Group, after recommended by the Project Advisory
Committee, pursuant to the power delegated
from the Board to the Chief Executive Officer. For
project risk management and project technological
risk management, the Group has set up a Project
Advisory Committee to monitor and assess risks
regularly, boost related management standards and
evaluate investment projects as well as assess the
technologies used in different investment projects.
For project financial control, the Group insists on
stringent budget management, and has set up a
Budget Approval Management Committee that
focuses on monitoring construction budgets. In
addition, the Group has also set up Internal Audit
Department and Risk Management Department to
perform internal audits, and risk management and
control functions respectively to bolster the Group’s
management standards.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted the Model Code as its
own code of conduct for Directors’ transactions in
securities of the Company. Having made specific
enquiries to the Directors, all Directors confirmed
that they had complied with the required standard of
dealings as set out in the Model Code during the six
months ended 30 June 2019.
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Other Information
Hi gk

CHANGE IN DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules,
the change in information of the Director since the
Company’s last published 2018 annual report is as
follows:

Mr. Suo Xuquan, an INED, was appointed
as an independent director of China Satellite
Communications Co., Ltd. which became a listed
company on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on
28 June 2019.

Save as disclosed above, the Company is not aware
of other information which is required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board has declared payment of an interim
dividend of HK13.0 cents per share (2018: HK12.0
cents per share) for the six months ended 30 June
2019, payable to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company
(the “Register of Members”) on Friday, 13 September
2019. The interim dividend will be paid to the
Shareholders on or around Friday, 4 October 2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders’
entitlement to the interim dividend, the Register
of Members will be closed from Wednesday,
11 September 2019 to Friday, 13 September 2019,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. Shareholders, whose
names appear on the Register of Members on the
record date, i.e. Friday, 13 September 2019, will be
entitled to the interim dividend. In order to qualify for
the interim dividend, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s share registrar and transfer office,
Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 10 September 2019.
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Other Information H &%

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the six months ended 30 June 2019,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company.

REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

The Audit Committee has reviewed the interim
financial information of the Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2019 for the Board’s approval.

By Order of the Board

China Everbright International Limited
Wang Tianyi

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 14 August 2019
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Interim Financial Report
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the six months ended 30 June 2019

mEEER
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BHE _ZT-NAFRA=THIE

N fE A

For the six months ended 30 June
BEAA=THLEARER

2019 2018
“E-hE “E-N\E
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
iz BT BETT
REVENUE W 3 16,225,718 11,784,390
Direct costs and operating BERARGCEER
expenses (10,572,459) (7,300,582)
Gross profit eS| 5,653,259 4,483,808
Other revenue Hthias 408,931 345,379
Other income and gains/ Et AR M
(losses), net (B#B)FE (23,447) (2,884)
Administrative expenses THER (1,008,402) (756,194)
PROFIT FROM OPERATING BEEHMERT
ACTIVITIES 5,030,341 4,070,109
Finance costs HBER 5 (828,778) (618,705)
Share of profits of joint ventures ~ Fr{E AL ERF 84,846 43,889
Share of profits of associates FribE S AR B 10,604 1,671
PROFIT BEFORE TAX bR A &R 4 4,297,013 3,496,964
Income tax FiEH 6 (1,046,525) (856,599)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD KEEAR 3,250,488 2,640,365
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: JEMEEh D -
Equity holders of the Company ARFERFEA 2,630,366 2,200,900
Non-controlling interests FERER 620,122 439,465
3,250,488 2,640,365
EARNINGS PER SHARE RARERHEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY EEERET (Restated)
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 8 (%)
- Basic and diluted -ERREE HK42.82 centsi&fll  HK47.78 cents/&1ll
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FE KRB AR AR
Interim Financial Report #8133k &
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF fFa R HERR
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the six months ended 30 June 2019 %%ﬁ: - NFAA=+AHL
/N
For the six months ended 30 June
BERA=THLA[ER
2019 2018
Z2-RE “F-N\&
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEH) (rEEm)
HK$'000 HK$'000
8T BETT
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD THEEH 3,250,488 2,640,365
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) E2EMA/ (5B
Other comprehensive income/{loss) that may be REGBEARENIES
reclassified 1o profit or loss in subsequent periods: ?ﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁiﬁ M/ BB
Exchange differences: EizE
Exchange differences on translation of BE8)RELIES2E
foreign operations (383,937) 992,556
Net other comprehensive income(loss) that maybe ~ RERHRTEERSBERER L

reclassffied to proft or loss in subsequent periods 2ERA/ (FB)FE (383,937) 992,556
Other comprenensive income/oss) that wilnot b~ REEHRAEEHMRERERZ

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: ~ EfRZEUA/(BE) :

Other financial assets measured at fair value BARESAEBRERAGTEL

through other comprehensive income: A HBEE
Changes in fair value N EES (2,163) 12316
Net other comprehensive incorme/(oss) that will notbe  RER BRI EEFHEERER L

reclassified o profit or loss in subsequent periods ~ EMZERA/(BE)FE (2,163) 1316
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) ¢g EEM2ERN/ (BE)

FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX (BHEHE) (386,100) 993,872
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD A BB 2 EMALE 2,864,388 3,634,237
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: K

Equity holders of the Company PN ﬂ&;@%ﬁ A 2,324,317 3,044,485

Non-controling interests SRR 540,071 589,752

2,864,388 3,634,287
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF fRE MR &
FINANCIAL POSITION
30 June 2019 —E-hFRNA=1H
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
“E-NE —T-N\F
AA=+H +ZA=t+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (BH&%)
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BisE BT T BETFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FnBEE
Investment properties BEME 158,776 159,310
Property, plant and equipment  #91% « BE K& E 4,512,456 4,410,100
Right-of-use assets FREEE 376,078 -
Prepaid land lease payments AN HEERE - 213,082
5,047,310 4,782,492
Goodwill EES 1,932,633 1,758,737
Intangible assets BIAE 15,376,205 12,642,951
Interests in joint ventures AEtEER 756,173 679,246
Interests in associates BANRER 363,504 334,679
Contract assets ANEBE 9 49,172,729 43,540,152
Finance lease receivables AVETRE EU IR 16,036 16,435
Other financial assets HnHHEE 480,347 42,570
Debtors, other receivables, JEYBRET: - H bl
deposits and prepayments A - e RENFE S 10 2,111,557 1,572,127
Deferred tax assets ELEHBEE 167,686 92,875
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 75,424,180 65,457,264
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Inventories & 1,079,876 658,759
Contract assets ANBE 9 8,634,730 7,536,954
Finance lease receivables BAHERED 598 567
Debtors, other receivables, JEURBRR » ﬁfﬁﬁguﬁl
deposits and prepayments A BeREAFE 10 7,340,438 5,492,094
Tax recoverable A ETRIE 74 1,519
Pledged bank deposits BHEBRITER 11 758,605 1,115,382
Deposits with banks with maturity 775 HiBB=EA 2
period over three months RITFET 11 37,326 2,722,719
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEY 12 12,037,686 12,136,379
Total current assets mBEELR 29,889,333 29,664,373
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF IRE SRR (&)

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

30 June 2019 —E—hFEXNA=1+H
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
=215 —T-N\F
AA=tH +-A=1t—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBERZ) (&EZ)
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BisE BETT BT
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Creditors, other payables and ~ FEREEF - EfhEft
accrued expenses RELEFER 13 11,093,052 10,167,760
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE
- Secured — B 2,755,057 2,846,064
- Unsecured —EH R 3,225,181 2,088,871
5,980,238 4,934,935
Tax payable [ERHE 194,675 131,692
Total current liabilities MEAERE 17,267,965 15,234,387
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 12,621,368 14,429,986
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BREERTBARE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 88,045,548 79,887,250
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
30 June 2019
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—T-hFARA=1+H
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30 June 31 December

2019

2018

—E-hE —E-)N\F
AB=tRA +-A=1-R

(Unau_dited) (Audited)
(REER) (B=%)
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BiisE BT T BETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EEIN=N =
Other payables HA {508 13 343,131 299,269
Interest-bearing borrowings HEREE
- Secured o =E:i il 15,599,698 13,537,237
- Unsecured — EI 22,718,121 20,058,995
38,317,819 33,591,232
Deferred tax liabilities EREFRIBAG 6,074,442 5,301,410
Total non-current liabilities FnHEELE 44,735,392 39,191,911
NET ASSETS EESFE 43,310,156 40,695,339
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity ARAERFAAN
holders of the Company FEfh s
Share capital e 14 17,329,537 17,329,637
Reserves =1 18,191,855 16,596,570
35,521,392 33,926,107
Non-controlling interests RS 7,788,764 6,769,232

TOTAL EQUITY BnE%E

=

43,310,156 40,695,339
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES &= %K
IN EQUITY \
For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BE_Z-NAFANA=1+AHL
7~ ME A
Goodwil
arising on Property
Share consolidation revaluation
capitel G657 reserve
e EE7HE NEEHREE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(x2&7%) (7287 (xE&7%)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
s BT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2019 RoE-NE-A-H 17,329,537 (986) 90,512
Profit for the period K55 = = =
Other comprehensive loss for the period: Eﬂw L H2AEE:
Changes i fair value of other financial assefs BAR B AEHRENATEL
measured at fair value through other EHEREEIDLERY
comprehensive income, net of tax (BNBEE) - = =
Exchange differences on translation of fﬁﬁ BEHEL B ZE
foreign operations = o o
Total comprehengive incomef(oss) for the period ~ BAZENRA/(BR )28 - = o
Dividend approved in respect of the previous year B4 &ﬁr LIRE 7 = = 3
Dilution of non-controling interests in a subsidiary ~ HEA AFERERES - = =
Acaquisiton of subsidiaries WEHEL = 3 3
Deemed disposal of partil nterests in a subsidiary MTEM%??H%%?H&?HQHW&
without losing control upon shares issued by REfELENBL D NES
asubsidiary to non-controling shareholders (WB5EEHE) 15 - - -
Capital contributions received! by non wholl-owned 3F§ ﬁﬁ% BliEsele
subsidiaries from non-controlling shareholders gz HEE = = o
Acquiston of non-controling interests in a subsiciary WWE AfEREs - -
Dividend declered to non-controling shareholders  BRMBATEERREEE RS
of subsialries = = -
At 30 June 2019 RZE-NERAZTH 17,329,537 (986)* 90,512
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated * ZEREBREBEN_Z—NEN
reserves of HK$18,191,855,000 (31 December 2018: =+ B2 EAE MBI RERTRER
HK$16,596,570,000) in the consolidated statement of & f# 15 78 1 18,191,855,000 7T
financial position as at 30 June 2019. (ZE—NE+=-_A=+—8:
75#16,596,570,0007T) °
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RLAREHENER
Otherfnancil
assets meastred
atfai vlue
through other
comprehensie
ncome resenve
BOAEA Non-
Bxchange Efp2EUA Other Resene Retained controling Total
reserve HEZEM resenves fund  profits Total interests equity
3 HEEGE Al fAEe RER 28 FaREs EniE
(Unaud\ ed) (Unaudit ed) (Unaud\ ed) (Unaud\led) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(xEg27) (xEg27) (REEH (REEH (RE&7) (RE&7) (xE&7) (xE&7%)
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 009 HKS' 009 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$’009 HK$’009
BT BT BT BT BT BT BETTL BETTL
(1,856,212) (706) 3,126,834 1,258,608 13,978,520 33,926,107 6,769,232 40,695,339
- - - - 2,630,366 2,630,366 620,122 3,250,488
- 2,163) - - - (2,163) - (2,163)
(303,886) - - - - (303,386) (80,051) (383,937)
(303,886) 2,163) - - 2,630,366 2,324,317 540,071 2,864,388
- - - - (737,157) (77,157) - (737,157)
- - 10,764 - - 10,764 (19,482) (8,718)
- - - - - - 58,223 58,223
- - 5,170 - - 5,170 294,057 299,227
- - - - - - 247,130 247,130
- - (7,809) - - (7,809) (20,946) (28,755)
- - - - = - (19,521) (19,521)
(2,160,098)* (2,869 3,134,950 1,258,608* 15,871,729 35,521,392 1,188,764 43,310,156
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF maEREERE)
CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HE-_FT-— W EFAAA=+TAHL
~MEA
Goodlwil
arising on Property
Share consolidation revaluation
capital ZABR reserve
i EE/BE  MEERREE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REE7) (REER)
Notes HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
sk AT AETT AETT
At 1 January 2018 w-%-\5-A-A 7,405,414 (986) 90,512
Proft for the period AEER - - -
Other comprehensive income for ERECETTON
the period:
Changes in fair value of other financial EALETALREENAE
assets measured at fair value through LEMBREE DL ERD
other comprehensive income, net oftax (2 HIBHE) - - -
Exchange differences on translation of RESISBEL AR
foreign operations - - -
Total comprehensive income for the period ~ BR2EWALE - - -
Dividend approved in respect of BitEEEERE
the previous year 7 - - -
Diution of non-controling interests WELREREREE
in a subsicliary - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENRLA - - -
Capital contrioutions received by FRENBLTNEERRR
non wholly-owned subsiciaries from WBMEHER
non-controling shareholders - - -
Dividend paid to non-controling BANBRREARRE
shareholders of subsidiaries ke - - -
At 30 June 2018 RoZ-N\ERAZTE 7,405,414 1986) 00512
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Attrioutable to equity holders of the Company
FRTAEFAARR
Other financial
assets meastred
atfairvalue
hrough other
comprenensive
ncome resene
BAREHA Non-
Bxchange  EtZEWA Other Reserve Retained controling Total
reserve tE2E reserves ~fund profits Total nterests equity
EXite  HHAEEE At -3 RERH 4% FEkER 4%k
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (7E37) (7E37) (737 (7E37) (%@37) (7%R) (73R
HSWD HOI0  HOIO MDD HGOD  HEND  HSID O
BBTTL EBTTL BT BT BT BT BT AETT
(58,282) (1922) 3,099,052 919,079 11,074,664 22,527,581 6,080,288 28,607,869
- - - - 2,200,900 2,200,900 439,465 2,640,365
- 1316 - - - 1,316 - 1,316
842,269 - - - - 842,269 150,287 992,556
842,269 1316 - - 2,200,900 3,044,485 589,752 3,634,231
- - - - (537,925) (537,929) - (637,929)
- - 13,325 - - 13,325 (13,329) -
- - - - - - 27,303 27,308
- - - - - - 4328 43,235
- - - - - - (78,152) (78,152)
784,087 606) 3,112,317 919,079 12,737,639 25,047,466 6,649,101 31,696,567
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH el mER
FLOWS
For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BHE-_Z—-—hF~A=FTHL
~E A
For the six months ended 30 June
BERA=TRLEAER
2019 2018
“E-hE -\
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEHK) (REER)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
fitsx BETT BRI
(Restated)
(2%)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES £
Profit before tax 4,297,013 3,496,964
Adjustments for: TR
Depreciation of property, NE - BERRENE
plant and equipment 4 151,410 135,692
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 4 13,016 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease BALHERBEEH
payments 4 - 2,635
Amortisation of intangible assets B AESHE 4 210,770 160,818
Finance costs YEER 5 828,778 618,705
Dividend income BEMA 4 (181) (122)
Interest income %IJ S 4 (97,643) (51,834)
Share of profits of joint ventures FER BN ERT (84,846) (43,889)
Share of profits of associates FriEBE NG 2T (10,604) (1,671)
Fair value losses/(gains), net: ArfEEE/ (eg)E
Other financial assets - unlisted Hﬂﬁﬁﬁ 7‘}5‘ ﬁF 3H: m
equity investment 4 (358) -
Other financial assets - unlisted Hﬂﬁﬁﬁ 7‘}5‘ BE-%t%
investments RE 4 3,814 -
Contingent consideration receivable SARERNZE 4 (727) -
Impairment of debtors B 4 20,289 2,865
Loss on disposal of items of property, LENE  BRRREL
plant and equipment, net 38 775 19
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes, net ~ EXEH 75 238 (287,202 2,357
5,094,304 4,322,539
Increase in inventories FEEN (410,723) (356,924)
Increase in contract assets ANBEEN (6,863,195) (5,198,100)
Increase in debtors, other receivables, RS - AR -
deposits and prepayments Re RBRATEEM (1,821,818) (1,137,452)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors, RS EREATER
other payables and accrued expenses BN/ (F)) 704,135 (70,937)
Cash used in operations (3,297,297) (2,440,874
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH RERERERE)
FLOWS (continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BHE-_ZE—hLEA~NA=1THI1
~NEA
For the six months ended 30 June
BERAZTRLEAER
2019 2018
ZE-nE -\
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEHK) (REEH)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
fits BT BETT
(Restated)
(ER)
Interest received BiH 8 97,643 51,834
People’s Republic of China (PRC”) and ERREARLNE
overseas income taxes paid (B ]) REMIER (251,280) (235,327)
Net cash flows used in operating activities (3,450,934) (2,624,367)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Dividend received Bl 181 122
Purchase of items of property, plant BENE BREREE
and equipment (231,082) (453,851)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWZ  FiER&EHETE
plant and equipment 210 18,071
Principal portion of lease payments/ REMZZ A /
prepayment of land leases iiﬁﬂ%}é IERE (16,423) (23,312)
Additions of intangible assets 1 EMZ{@E (2,848,223) (1,732,670)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENHBAR (259,948) (114,457)
Capital contributions to joint ventures hid é/\%ﬁ% - (9,780)
Capital contributions to associates EEBED (20,242) (9,250)
Increase in an amount due from an associate fE4L ﬁiéﬁ TIBE (4,373) -
Increase in non-current portion of prepayments {1 2 IﬁiEEﬂHﬂ A (586,419) (28,039)
Repayment from finance lease receivables ~ RiEH EMEUGIAR 296 300
Purchase of other financial assets BEAMHKEE (451,563) (2,787)
Decrease in restricted balances RepiE IR
in financial institutions - 95,000
Decrease in deposits with banks with FRE@A=AR 2%
maturity period over three months B 2,673,888 806,192

Net cash flows used in investing activities R & EEMBR B L HEFE (1,743,698) (1,459,461)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH meallenER#E)
FLOWS (continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BHE-_Z—-—hF~A=FTHL
~E A
For the six months ended 30 June
BERA=THLAMER
2019 2018
“E-NF -\
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(K&K (REER)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
fits BT BETT
(Restated)
(ER)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BETHHMEHERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of corporate bond, BIRRERMEIE
net of related expenses paid (BMBREME ﬁﬁﬁﬁi) 804,235 -
New bank and other loans TEBTREMER 8,910,892 6,796,707
Repayment of bank and other loans BRETREANEN (3,843,543) (2,610,834)
Capital contributions received by FREMBARMIERREE
non wholly-owned subsidiaries WBAGzHER
from non-controlling shareholders 546,357 43,235
Acquisition of non-controlling interests iy say (37,473) -
Increase in an amount due to non-controlling }Téﬁﬂﬁ% T;H et
shareholder of a subsidiary #1 17,592 -
Decrease in pledged bank deposits }Wfﬁﬂﬁmﬁz b 352,064 241,403
Interest paid Eﬁﬂ E (778,550) (594,441)
Interest element of lease payments/ HER; / HEMRE
finance lease rental payments %ﬁéﬁmZﬂ S84 (1,940) (1,166)
Dividend paid to equity holders of the BRELEERFAALRE
Company (737,157) (637,925)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders 2 HBA A HERRE L
of subsidiaries &8 (108,104) (78,152)
Net cash flows from financing activities AEEHMER SRR 5,124,373 3,258,827
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRASEEMALFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (70,259) (825,001)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ HR & RELEEN
period 12,136,379 8,657,193
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes, net EX& &), 5/ £5% (28,434) 157,740
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRBLRELSEY

AT END OF PERIOD 12 12,037,686 7,989,932
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RAR MR

NOTES TO UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL
INFORMATION
For the six months ended 30 June 2019

1.1 CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
China Everbright International Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office
of the Company is located at Room 2703, 27th
Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong. During the six months
ended 30 June 2019, the principal activities of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are construction,
environmental energy project operation (waste-
to-energy plants, methane-to-energy plants,
sludge treatment and disposal projects and
food waste treatment projects), greentech
project operation (integrated biomass utilisation
projects, hazardous and solid waste treatment
projects, solar energy projects and wind
power projects, and provision of environmental
remediation services), environmental water
project operation (waste water treatment
plants, water supply, reusable water treatment
plants, sludge harmless treatment, sponge city
construction, river-basin ecological restoration,
waste water source heat pump projects,
leachate treatment, research and development
of water environment technologies and
engineering projects), conduct of environmental
protection technology research and
development, provision of environmental-related
technological services, design of environmental
protection projects, provision of environmental
protection project equipment construction
and installation services and sales of related
equipment, waste sorting, environmental
and sanitary services, renewable resources
utilisation, waste treatment and operation of
landfill, and investment holding.
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1.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The unaudited interim financial information
for the six months ended 30 June 2019 has
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 34 “Interim
Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and the applicable disclosure
requirements of Appendix 16 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The accounting policies and basis of preparation
adopted in the preparation of the unaudited
interim financial information are consistent with
those adopted in the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018 except
for the changes in accounting policies made
thereafter in adopting the new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the HKICPA, which became effective
for the first time for the current period’s financial
information, as further detailed in note 1.3 below.
The unaudited interim financial information is
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

The financial information contains condensed
consolidated financial statements and selected
explanatory notes. The notes include an
explanation of events and transactions that are
significant to an understanding of the changes in
financial position and performance of the Group
since the 2018 annual financial statements.
The condensed consolidated interim financial
information does not include all the information
and disclosures required in the annual financial
statements, and should be read in conjunction
with the Group’s annual consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December
2018.

China Everbright International Limited
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1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 1.2 RBLEXEE)

The financial information relating to the year
ended 31 December 2018 that is included in
this unaudited interim financial information as
comparative information does not constitute
the Company’s statutory annual consolidated
financial statements for that year but is
derived from those financial statements.
Further information relating to those statutory
financial statements required to be disclosed in
accordance with section 436 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance is as follows:

The Company has delivered the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 to the Registrar of Companies as required
by section 662(3) of, and Part 3 of Schedule 6 to,
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Company’s auditor has reported on the
financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018. The auditor’s report was
unqualified; did not include a reference to any
matters to which the auditor drew attention
by way of emphasis without qualifying its
report; and did not contain a statement under
sections 406(2), 407(2) or (3) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

RREEZD YT ER
FEEEEZE T /\F+=
A=+—B IFFENUH LR
Z % E R AR A A
RZFEEEFERS M
B EABYEENT
MBEZEPBE@RE - RB(E
78 BGE B ) 55 436 16 7R T 4%
BENEZEEAENHERERE
BAHE— S ERIAT ¢

KNRAREEBCEBS QA E
1) 5 662(3) 5 F i % 6 55 356
ZHETEMBEBRRGFMEIR
REE_ZTE-—NF+=_A=
+—BIEFEZEBERE -

AR ZEBMEREBEE=Z
—NFE+-_A=+—H8I*F
EZWBERRELER - %
RHMBEERBER  H
RAEEZEAME S AR
BEAZBERTABANF
ARBEAEIEZEMNS
B B ERB(EAAR
1&19] ) 25 406(2) ~ 5 407(2) 3k
(B)&IEL 2 &R -
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1.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES FRTBGRE B R KR
AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and AREBDRKRERE 2 AEE
revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current #% b HA ﬁﬁﬁ*éﬂ BIREAT
period’s unaudited interim financial information: HIFTE] M ASAE 5] & 78 B 75 )
HAER|
Amendments to Prepayment Features with AU SRE [ABBEEZ
HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation BRESEy  BEESEM/
5]
HKFRS 16 Leases EAUBRE [HE/
ERIE165:
Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or ERSER  [HEBT HR
HKAS 19 Settlement F1E B HEE/
Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates B gty [/7"@”44 Aalk
HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures FBEZBI  AELEZ
E@fégﬁ‘l{/
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax E,’é(lﬁ%ﬁ?} B [HEHEES
Treatments LRE THEER]
%%@) —2E
F23%
Annual Improvements  Amendments to HKFRS 3, —F-5FF [EANERS
2015-2017 Cycle HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and ZF—+FF  RERIE3R
HKAS 23 BoEENE BENBREE

AIE115E - BR
SEHERIE 125

RER LR

F235% 2 571 |
Other than as explained below regarding the & T P F’ﬁ BEEBAEBENG
impact of HKFRS 16 Leases, the adoption HEAEIHIHEE | 2%
of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no ZBON > FNERAITE LB
material impact on the unaudited interim financial S EBYBREELNEARE
information of the Group. The principal effects for B 7 RETEZ EF' HH Bt 7% & &t
adopting HKFRS 16 are as follows: WERAMNERTE - HWNE

B RS ERIFE165 2 £
BEEMNT



Interim Report 2019
—Z-AFPHRE

1.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases,
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-
Int 15 Operating Leases - Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substances of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees
to account for all leases under a single on-
balance sheet model. Lessor accounting
under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify
leases as either operating or financing leases
using similar principles as in HKAS 17. Therefore,
HKFRS 16 did not have any financial impact on

leases where the Group is the lessor.

The Group adopted HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective method of adoption with
the date of initial application of 1 January 2019.
Under this method, the standard is applied
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits as at 1 January 2019,
and the comparative information for 2018 was
not restated and continues to be reported under

HKAS 17.
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1.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains a
lease if the contract conveys a right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the identified asset and the right to direct
the use of the identified asset. The Group elected
to use the transition practical expedient allowing
the standard to be applied only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial
application. Contracts that were not identified
as leases under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition of
a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied only
to contracts entered into or changed on or after

1 January 2019.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract
that contains a lease component, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease and non-lease component on the
basis of their stand-alone prices. A practical
expedient is available to a lessee, which the
Group has adopted, not to separate non-lease
components and to account for the lease and the
associated non-lease components as a single

lease component.

China Everbright International Limited
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1.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases
Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items
of property, machinery, vehicles and other
equipment. As a lessee, the Group previously
classified leases as either finance leases or
operating leases based on the assessment of
whether the lease transferred substantially all the
rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the
Group. Under HKFRS 16, the Group applies a
single approach to recognise and measure right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases,
except for two elective exemptions for leases
for low value assets (elected on a lease by lease
basis) and short-term leases (elected by class of
underlying asset). The Group has elected not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for (i) lease of low-value assets; and (ii) leases,
that at the commencement date, have a lease
term of 12 months or less. Instead, the Group
recognises the lease payments associated with
those leases as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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1.3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases (continued)

Impacts on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were
recognised based on the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019
and included in interest-bearing borrowings.

The right-of-use assets were measured at
the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognised in
the statement of financial position immediately
before 1 January 2019. All these assets were
assessed for any impairment based on HKAS 36
on that date. The Group elected to present the
right-of-use assets separately in the statement of
financial position. This includes the lease assets
recognised previously under finance leases of
HK$55,910,000 that were reclassified from
property, plant and equipment and the lease
assets recognised previously under operating
leases of HK$213,082,000 that were reclassified
from prepaid land lease payments.

For the leasehold land and buildings (that were
held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation) previously included in investment
properties and measured at fair value, the Group
has continued to include them as investment
properties at 1 January 2019. They continue to
be measured at fair value applying HKAS 40.

China Everbright International Limited
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1.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases (continued)

Impacts on transition (continued)

The Group has used the following elective
practical expedients when applying HKFRS 16 at
1 January 2019:

e Applied the short-term leases exemptions to
leases with a lease term that ends within 12
months at the date of initial application

e Used hindsight in determining the lease
term where the contract contains options to
extend/terminate the lease

e Used a single discount rate to a portfolio
of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics

e Excluded the initial direct costs from the
measurement of the right-of-use assets at
the date of initial application
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1.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

operating leases (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as

China Everbright International Limited

REEREIBRAERA

1.3 B BELDRREE)

Impacts on transition (continued)
The impacts arising from the adoption of
HKFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019 are as follows:

EFEMBREEF165
&%)

1ERAN — R DI B E
HEZHE (&)

BEZHE

R_F—NE—F—B &
BB B WS RS 165

FEEZZENT
Increase/
(decrease)
#hn,
OR)
(Unaudited)
(REEFEZ)
HK$'000
BT T
Assets BE
Right-of-use assets EREERE 284,022
Property, plant and equipment M - BE K& (65,910)
Prepaid land lease payments TET i & IE (213,082)
Total assets EEE 15,030
Liabilities =N
Interest-bearing borrowings EEE
— Unsecured (current portion) — IR (BIEAER (D) 2,523
Interest-bearing borrowings SFEEE
— Unsecured (non-current portion) — — 3K 18 (FERNHAER(S ) 12,507
Total liabilities waf 15,030
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1.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases (continued)

Impacts on transition (continued)

The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019
reconciled to the operating lease commitments
as at 31 December 2018 is as follows:
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HEMBREENF165
&%)

1ERATN — RSB B E
HEZHE (&)
BEZHE(E)

?‘5"_? hE—H—Bz#E
EafER_FT-N\F+_A
_-1— He&LHEREY
BRI -

(Unaudited)
(REEFEZ)
HK$’000
BT T
Operating lease commitments R-ZZE-N\E+=ZHA=+—H
as at 31 December 2018 ZREHERIE 34,638
Weighted average incremental RZZE-NF—A—ABZ
borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019 JN#&E F5IRE £ B F| =R 4.33%
Discounted operating lease —hF—A—B8z
commitments as at 1 January 2019  #ZRLIR K& THERIE 31,094
Less: Commitments relating to B EENHEE kG THE
short-term leases and those R T —F+
leases with a remaining —A=+—H%zAH
lease term ending on or ERHE 2R
before 31 December 2019 (15,143)
Commitments relating to ﬁ%ﬁﬂiﬁgﬁﬁéﬁ*ﬂ%z
leases of low-value assets (921)
Add: Commitments relating to hn F%’“*ﬁﬁmﬂﬁfﬂfz
leases previously classified THEAREE
as finance leases 42,199
Lease liabilities R-EB-NF—-BA—HZ
as at 1 January 2019 HERE 57,229
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1.3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Summary of new accounting policies

The accounting policy for leases as disclosed
in the annual financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 is replaced with the
following new accounting policies upon adoption
of HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019:

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease. Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Unless the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the
end of the lease term, the recognised right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the estimated
useful life and the lease term. When a right-of-
use asset meets the definition of investment
property, it is included in investment properties.
The corresponding right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, and subsequently measured
at fair value, in accordance with the Group’s
policy for “Investment properties”.
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1.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Summary of new accounting policies (continued)
Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to
be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in future lease
payments arising from change in an index or
rate, a change in the lease term, a change in the
in-substance fixed lease payments or a change
in the assessment to purchase the underlying
asset.
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2. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group manages its business by divisions,
which are organised by business lines. In
a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has
presented four reportable segments.

— Environmental energy project construction
and operation: this segment engages in the
construction and operation of waste-to-
energy plants, methane-to-energy plants,
sludge treatment and disposal projects and
food waste treatment projects, to generate
revenue from construction services, revenue
from operation services as well as finance
income.

- Greentech project construction and
operation: this segment engages in the
construction and operation of integrated
biomass utilisation projects, hazardous
and solid waste treatment projects,
solar energy projects and wind power
projects, and provision of environmental
remediation services, to generate revenue
from construction services, revenue from
operation services as well as finance
income.

2.
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2. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

— Environmental water project construction
and operation: this segment engages in
the construction, upgrade and operation
of waste water treatment plants, water
supply, reusable water treatment plants,
sludge harmless treatment, sponge
city construction, river-basin ecological
restoration, waste water source heat pump
projects, leachate treatment, research
and development of water environment
technologies and engineering projects,
to generate revenue from construction
services, revenue from operation services as
well as finance income.

— Others: this segment engages in the
conduct of environmental protection
technology research and development,
the provision of environmental-related
technological services, design of
environmental protection projects, the
provision of environmental protection project
equipment construction and installation
services and sales of related equipment,
waste sorting, environmental and sanitary
services, renewable resources utilisation,
waste treatment and operation of landfill,
from which it generates revenue.

For the purpose of assessing segment
performance and allocating resource between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Segment assets include all tangible assets,
intangible assets, goodwill, interests in
associates and joint ventures, investments
in other financial assets, deferred tax assets
and current assets with the exception of
intercompany receivables and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include current
taxation, deferred tax liabilities, creditors, other
payables and accrued expenses attributable
to the activities of the individual segment and
borrowings managed directly by the segments,
with the exception of intercompany payables.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments. However,
other than reporting inter-segment sales of
equipment and provision of technological
services, assistance provided by one segment
to another, including technical know-how, is not
measured.

2.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation” (“EBITDA”). To arrive at
EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
the individual segment, such as directors’ and
auditor’s remuneration and other head office or
corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning EBITDA, management is provided
with segment information concerning revenue
(including inter-segment sales and revenue
from technological services), depreciation and
amortisation and additions to non-current
segment assets used by the segments in their
operations.

2.
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2. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 2. RESBERGE)
(continued)

(i)

Information about profit or loss, assets (i)
and liabilities

Information regarding the Group’s
reportable segments as provided to the

Group’s most senior executive management

for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the

period is set out below.

For the six months ended 30 June

B HAERAEEBEZER
RAME  AEBERE

BB X5 RBE TG
ﬁﬁﬁ$%lﬂaﬁ%—k 2
ﬁﬁwF:

BLENH=1HIE 1A

Environmental energy
project construction
and operation

RANKRERRERES
2019 2018
= i
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REEHR) (REER)
HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BETT
Segment revenue: DEURE
Revenue from external customers RENARFUE 9,054,074 5,912,652
Inter-segment revenue 7 EbEE = -
Reportable segment revenue BYHE 9,054,074  5912,652
Reconciliation: % -
Elimination of inter-segment revenue B BRENE

Reportable segment revenue derived from REAEENAEFZ
the Group’s external customers BYRED PhE
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Greentech Environmental water
project construction project construction
and operation and operation Others Total
BERRERBEREE RRKBEBREREE Hit ag
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-0F ZE-\§ ZEB-hE ZE-\f ZE-NE 3 \§ ZB-hfE CZE)\%
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REBR)  (REBER)  (REBR)  (REBR)  (RESR)  (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT AT
4,241,313 3,150,890 2,485,366 2,309,551 444,965 411,297 16,225,718 11,784,390
12 2,017 - 50,924 334,522 757,197 334,534 810,138
4,241,325 3,152,907 2,485,366 2,360,475 779,487 1,168,494 16,560,252 12,594,528
(334,534) (810,138)
16,225,718 11,784,390
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2. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 2. REDEER(E)
(continued)
() Information about profit or loss, assets (i) BiE BERAGBZER
and liabilities (continued) (%)
For the six months ended 30 June BHEENA=FHIANEA
Environmental energy
project construction
and operation
RREREAREREE
2019 2018
Z2-nE  —E)\F

(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REEHR) (REER)
HK$'000 HKS'000

BETT AR

Segment results: AWEE:
Reportable segment profit (EBITDA) BT HE D HRFEBTDA 3,430,724 2,644,042
Elimination of inter-segment profits BEDHEAN
Reportable segment profit derived from REREENRERP L

the Group’s external customers BAPRESDEA
Finance costs HBER
Depreciation and amortisation, WEREH(BERDE

including unallocated portion #7)

Unallocated head office and corporate income KA E AR A RAZERA
Unallocated head office and corporate expenses A B2 A R ER T

e

Consolidated profit before tax FARTAIRT
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—B-NERHRE i
Greentech Environmental water
project construction project construction
and operation and operation Others Total
BERRARBRERES RRKBEBREREE Hity b
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-AF T-/\F ZB-hF CT0\E CBAE CT\F CEAE ST\
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)  (REER)  (REEn) (REER) (REER)  (RERR)  (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BBTT BETT BETT BETT
1,372,635 1,030,591 832,378 782,598 44,931 383,312 5,680,668 4,840,543
(167,083) (365,285)
5,513,585 4,475,258
(828,778) (618,705)
(375,196) (299,145)
64,349 8,667
(77,447) (69,111)
4,297,013 3,496,964
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2. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
(i) Information about profit or loss, assets
and liabilities (continued)
For the six months ended 30 June

China Everbright International Limited
HEEKEBRERD A

REDEER (&)

(i) BiE BERAGBZER
(%)
BHEENA=FHIANEA

Environmental energy
project construction
and operation

BRKFARREREE
2019 2018
“Z-0FE  ZT-N\%
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT

Other segment information: HiDUEsR :

Depreciation and amortisation FERES
Impairment of debtors R

76,820 46,331

Additions to property, plant and equipment and EREENE - BiE Rk
right-of-use assets/prepayment of land lease  RERELE /tHHE

during the period BRFE

74,806 191,776

Additions to intangible assets and non-current  ERIZE BB E RENFIE

portion of prepayments during the period p L

1,433,665 731,864

Additions to non-current portion of B EANEE 2R

contract assets during the period #

6,012,872 3,972,941
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Greentech
project construction
and operation

BERREEREREE
2019 2018
“g-AE —INF

(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(RBE®R) (REEQ)
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETR BETR

Environmental water
project construction
and operation

BRAKERREREY
2019 2018
“g-pE -\

(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(RBER) (REEQ)
HK$°000 HK$'000
BRI BB

S

172,888 136,128
260,061 216,370
2,062,454 1,272,273

550,131 687,934

48,336 44,655
1,007 2,865
14,005 5,092
134,844 126,507

1,625,401 1,484,438

Others Total

Hity &g
2019 2018 2019 2018
“8-1F -3\ SE-nfF ST/
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)  (REBR) (REFR)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BBTT BETT BETT BETT
68,114 62,544 366,158 289,658
18,292 - 20,289 2,865
58,416 68,849 407,288 482,087
12,415 2,067 3,643,378 2,132,711
- - 8,187,904 6,145,313
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2. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

China Everbright International Limited

REEREIBRAERA

REDEER (&)

(continued)
() Information about profit or loss, assets (i) BiE BERAGBZER
and liabilities (continued) (%)
Environmental energy
project construction
and operation
RREREAREREE
At At
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
s R
“E-NE ZE2-N\F
~A=TH fTZA=t-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (8&%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BRI
Reportable segment assets BYREZINEE 50,266,650 43,099,343
Unallocated head office and corporate assets FARELARLEEE
Consolidated total assets GREENE
Reportable segment liabilities BFRECIHEE 20,936,652 17,773,496
Unallocated head office and corporate liabiliies ~ AAEERAIRAEAE
Consolidated total liabilities GABRNLE
(ii) Information about a major customer (i) TEFFEH

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 and
2018, the revenue from the Group’s largest
customer amounted to less than 10% of the
Group’s total revenues.

HE_Z—NLFRER=Z
—NEXNA=FTHIEAR
@A REAXEEZK
EREZWEEAEEK
mBEELR10% °
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Greentech Environmental water
project construction project construction
and operation and operation Others Total
BERREAREREL BRABEEREREE Eft ag
At At At At At At At At
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
7 R iy S S s s R

“E-0f 2 \&  ZB-Af T\ ZE-puf ZB-\f  ZEBE-AE  CE-)\E
~A=tR +ZA=t-A  AA=tR fZA=t+-A AA=tH +ZA=tH ARR=tR {ZA=tA
(Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (mgn)  (REER) (mgn)  (REER) (mgn)  (REER) (#21%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETT BETL BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

22,564,462 18,673,215 20,976,578 19,298,504 4,495,059 4226974 98,302,744 85,198,036

7,010,769 9,923,601

105,313,518 96,121,637

12,509,814 0,168,525 11,907,396 10,921,728 2,469,267 2,501,133 47,823,129 40,364,877

14,180,228 14,061,421

62,003,357 54,426,298
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3. REVENUE 3. Y=
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WaairnT :

For the six months ended 30 June

BERA=THLEAEA

2019 2018
—E-hE - )\F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REE%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETTL
(Restated)
(ER)
Revenue from contracts with EEAHhE
customers
Revenue from environmental energy project  JB{REBIE B2 R
construction services 6,477,245 3,920,125
Revenue from greentech project ZERRERBERBYE
construction services 2,234,898 1,871,126
Revenue from environmental water project  B{R/KHKIE B RERBYE
construction services 1,381,311 1,310,350
Revenue from environmental energy project &R ERIE BB L RAUE
operation services 1,552,701 1,144,107
Revenue from greentech project operation 4 &8 {712 B EL Ris Iz
services 1,916,386 1,218,500
Revenue from environmental water project  JB{R/KI4IE B B4 Rk Mz
operation services 712,232 616,479
Revenue from equipment constructionand ~ EERERTERBREE
installation services and sales Wi 197,039 173,693
Others Hit 247,926 237,604
Total revenue from contracts with REANNHEE
customers 14,719,738 10,491,984
Finance income from service concession  TRI&HSEFE A T HE 7 BT
arrangements WA 1,505,980 1,292,406
Total revenue et 16,225,718 11,784,390
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REVENUE (continued)

The aggregated revenues from environmental
energy project construction and operation
services, greentech project construction
and operation services, environmental water
project construction and operation services
and finance income derived from the local
government authorities in the PRC amounted to
HK$14,710,818,000 (six months ended 30 June
2018: HK$10,763,177,000) for the six months
ended 30 June 2019. The revenues are included
in “Environmental energy project construction
and operation”, “Greentech project construction
and operation” and “Environmental water
project construction and operation” segments
as disclosed in note 2 to this unaudited interim
financial information.
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3. REVENUE (continued) 3. Wam#E)
Disaggregated revenue information BoFWBRER
For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BE_Z—hFE~A=+H
LE7S{E A
Environmental Greentech  Environmental
energy project project water project
construction construction construction
and operation ~and operation and operation
Seqments RRER RERR RRkE Others Total
pi] BEEEREE  BAREREE  ERREREE i g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
B8 L E BRI L E B8
Type of goods and services EYREHEE
Construction Services s 6,477,245 2,204,898 1,381,311 - 10,093,454
Operaton services BLRE 1,552,101 1,016,386 12282 = 4,181,319
Equipment construction and RERERRERBREE
Installaion services and sales - - - 197,039 197,009
Others it - - - 247,026 247,926
Total revenue from contracts with customers  REASINELE 8,020,946 4,151,084 2,003,543 444,965 14,719,738
Geographical location of customers*
Mainland China 8,001,009 4,148,732 2,093,543 254,269 14,497,553
Germany - 2,552 - - 2,55
Poland - - - 190,69 190,696
Vigtnam 2,91 - - - 28,931
Totalrevenug from contracts with customers BEA#NELE 8,029,046 4,151,284 2,003,543 444,965 14,119,738
The geographical location of customers is based on the location of which the services were provided. ' REFEAERRRRENSE
Timing of revenue recognition
Over time 8,020,946 4,151,284 201,821 44713 14,673,770
Atapoint in time - - 15,716 30,252 45,968
Total revenue from contracts with customers - REASAEE 8,029,946 4,151,284 2,093,543 444,965 14,719,738
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3. REVENUE (continued) 3. W= (&)
Disaggregated revenue information BoFWBER(E)
(continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2018 BHE_ZT—N\F~A=+H
LE7S1E A
Environmental Greentech  Environmental
energy project projet  water project
construction construction construction
andoperafion  and'operation  and operation
Segments TRIReAR FERR RRKE Others Tota
P BERERE: GEREREE BERERE: it 8
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
b S T BT BT BT
Type of goods and services ENRRHEL
Construction senvices BERE 3,900,125 1871126 1310350 - 7,101,601
Operation senioes ELRH 1,144,107 1218500 616,479 - 2,079,086
Equipment construction and FERERTERAREE
nstallation semvices and sales - - - 173,693 173693
Others -0 - - - 237,604 237,604
Total revenue from contracts with customers  EEAMNALEE 5,004,232 3,089,626 1926829 411,297 10,491,984
Geographical location of customers*  ZPFTEHE"
Mainland China hEREE 5,064,232 3,086,605 1926829 77450 102510
Germany [E - 3021 - - 301
Poland bt - - - 233,843 233,843
Total revene from contracts with customers  EE44KE4E 5,064,232 3,089,626 1926829 W07 10491984
" The geographical location of customers is based on the location of which the senvces were provided. — * BPHEMERRARLLZES
Timing of revenue recognition G
Over time R-BRER 5,064,232 3,089,626 1911426 321,512 10,386,796
At apoint in time ME-BY - - 15,403 89,785 105,188
Total revenue from contracts with customers - RP&ANASAE 5064282 3089626 1926829 41297 1049198
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3. REVENUE (continued) 3. W= &)
Disaggregated revenue information BoFWBER(E)
(continued)
Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue TXHEHINE P& LW 5
from contracts with customers with the amounts ERE BT 5E 4 58 2 HIBR ¢
disclosed in the segment information:
For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HE-_Z—NFA=1H
LE7R1E A
Environmental Greentech  Environmental
energy project project water project
construction construction construction
and operation and operation and operation
Segmerts BRER BERR BRAE Others Total
E! FREAREE  GEEEREY  GAEAREZ it 2]
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
B8 ARt E8TT ML B8t
Revenue from contracts with customers  ZFAHE
External customers HRER 9,054,074 4,241,313 2,485,366 444,965 16,226,718
Infer-segment revenue PElEle - 12 - 334,522 334,534
9,054,074 4,241,325 2,485,366 9,487 16,560,252
Finance income B (1,024,128) (90,09) (391,829) - (1,505,980)
Inter-segment acjustments and eiminations S SEHEREE - (12 - (334,522 (334,534)
Totalrevenue from contracts vith customers - BE A4S 8,029,946 4,151,284 2,093,543 444,965 14,719,738
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3. REVENUE (continued) 3. Wem#E)
Disaggregated revenue information BoFWBER(E)
(continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2018 BHE_ZT—N\F~A=+H
LE7{E A
Environmental Gregntech Environmental
energy project project Water project
construction construction construction
and operation and operation and operation
Segments FRER HERR Bk Others Total
74 FRREREE  EAREREX  EARERER it £
HKS000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK§'000

BT AETL 8T BT BETL

Revenue from contracts with customers  RFAXHE

Extemal customers HREP 5,912,652 3,150,890 230955t 401297 11,784,390
Inter-segment revenue: e - 2017 50924 757,197 810,138

5,012,652 3,162,907 2360475 1,168,494 12,604,528
Finence income BBRA [B48420) 61264 B82722) - (1,292.408)
Inter-segment acjustments and eliminations A BEREREE - 2017 50,924) (757,197) 810,13)

Total revenue fiom contracts with customers  EFAfREEE 5,064,232 3,089,626 1,96829 41297 10,491,984
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4. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after

China Everbright International Limited
HEEKEBRERD A

4. BRTAIEF
AEBEZBEBATARMNB

charging/(crediting): ek (Gt A) -
For the six months ended 30 June
HEXB=THLAEA
2019 2018
“E-hE —E-0\%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBEHK) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AR
Depreciation ik
- property, plant and equipment -0% BERE 151,410 135,692
- right-of-use assets -RAEEE 13,016 -
Amortisation 2y
— prepaid land lease payments -BtHERE = 2,635
- intangible assets -BWAE 210,770 160,818
Dividend income REMA (181) (122)
Interest income FlEUWA (97,643) (51,834)
Government grants™ BEE S (56,012) (34,230)
Value-added tax refund* EERRT (172,924) (191,578)
Impairment of debtors JEUREEF IR 20,289 2,865
Fair value losses/(gains), net: DMEEE/ ()54
Other financial assets - unlisted B BEE-FLTRA
equity investment & (358) -
Other financial assets - unlisted BB BEE - LmiRE
investments 3,814 -
Contingent consideration receivable SRR ERYE (721) -
Employee benefit expense: BERFFA -
Wages, salaries, allowances and benefits T4 - 4 « 2R
in kind ENila 822,386 630,342
Retirement scheme contributions RIRHE MR 187,020 137,408

1,009,406 767,750
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4. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

ok

Government grants of HK$56,012,000 (six months
ended 30 June 2018: HK$34,230,000) were
granted during the six months ended 30 June
2019 mainly to subsidise certain environmental
energy, greentech and environmental water
projects of the Group in the PRC and Poland.
There are no unfulfilled conditions and other
contingencies attached to the receipts of those
grants. There is no assurance that the Group will
continue to receive such grants in the future.

Value-added tax refund of HK$172,924,000 (six
months ended 30 June 2018: HK$191,578,000)
was received/receivable during the six
months ended 30 June 2019 in relation to
certain environmental energy, greentech and
environmental water project operations of the
Group in the PRC. There are no unfulfilled
conditions and other contingencies attached
to the receipts of such tax refund. There is no
assurance that the Group will continue to receive
such tax refund in the future.

4.

*

ok
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BRI 2 A (&)

HEZZT—NAE~A=1+H
WEREA - AN B2 MR
T # B) & 78 # 56,012,000
TE(%Z;::_::_/\EE/\
=+HIENEAR : B
34,230,00070) * FZ AN
AR AR EEEFEREFER
ETRERER SEBRER
RIRKBIEE - IEEBAK
SR 2 RERK M
MEMEBEFE - HATTEE
RERNEERBRAGATEE
BHZE/MBE -

BHE-ZT—hFE~A=1H
WEREA - AEBEEFER
ETRRER HKOERR
RIRRKBELBEEE
B SR R E R
172 924,0007T (B ZE =
”_)\i/\ﬂ +E|JJ:/\1.
: B#191,578,0007T) °
Wﬁﬁ@%m%%%@ﬁﬁ
M2 REKRGHEREMSEE
FIH - BRI TREREBEAEE
RBEK B2
ERER -
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5. FINANCE COSTS 5 WKEA

For the six months ended 30 June
BERA=THLAMEA

2019 2018

“E-hE - )\F

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (REBEZ)

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETIL

Interest on bank loans and other loans BOEFREMERZFE 774,818 594,441

Interest on corporate bond NRIEFHE 60,726 27,665

Interest on lease liabilities/finance leases ~ HEBE /BEREZH & 1,940 1,166

Others Hit 3,732 -

Less: Interest expenses capitalised B NERIRENL

into construction in progress® ZHEF (12,438) (4,567)

828,778 618,705
*  The borrowing costs have been capitalised * BEZZE-NEFARA=TH
at rates ranging from 4.90% to 5.39% (six IERER - EERARENF
months ended 30 June 2018: 4.66% to 4.90%E5.39% (HE=F—
4.90%) per annum during the six months NERA=THIEARHER -
ended 30 June 2019. 4.66%%4.90%) 2 FF|R#

TTEAR
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INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has
been made as the Group did not generate any
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the
six months ended 30 June 2019 (six months
ended 30 June 2018: Nil).

Tax for the PRC operations is charged at the
statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits
under tax rules and regulations in the PRC.
During the period, certain PRC subsidiaries are
subject to tax at 50% of the standard tax rate
or fully exempted from income tax under the
relevant tax rules and regulations.

111

FriS %t
HRASEREBEE-Z—
FERNA=ZFTHIEANERESR
7B W B AT 6] fE AR B &
H) - EE A AR A 1S
HEB(EEZZE-N\E~AH
=t+B1ENEA &) -

REER 2 HEREDHH
EERERER  BERRAE
%W%Ea’%%z&s%%ﬂé o Hj
mﬁﬁ@&%%@&%
=T BB AR AR
F&m 2%%%%mﬁi
EMSHHRIEZERE -

M S

E

a

For the six months ended 30 June

BEARZTHLEAEA

2019 2018
ZB-hE ZEN\E
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEHR) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Current - Elsewhere: AE-H B -
Charge for the period RERRHE 324,201 267,733
Underprovision/{overprovision) BESREE
in prior periods TR/ (BEEE) (10,052) 17,488
Deferred E 732,376 571,378
Total tax expense for the period TEBRERT S 1,046,525 856,599
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7. DIVIDENDS

China Everbright International Limited

REEREIBRAERA

g5\

For the six months ended 30 June
BEAA=THLEAER

2019 2018
ZB-NE “E-0\%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEHK) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Dividend attributable to the period: THBERE -
Interim - HK13.0 cents RS - EREBR13.0%
(six months ended 30 June fil
2018: HK12.0 cents) (Bz-2-)\F
per ordinary share NAZTRLEAEAR
12.0/1l) 798,587 537,925
Final dividend in respect of the previous ~ HIRE N F—EHBEE 2
financial year paid ABRE : —BREER
during the period: - HK12.0 cents 12,0211
(six months ended 30 June (BEZZ-)N\F
2018: HK12.0 cents) NAZTHIEAER
per ordinary share 12.01(l) 731,157 537,925
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 8. ARFEHEFAE ARBLEEFK
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY il
The calculation of basic earnings per share BHE-_Z-—NF~A="T
amount for the six months ended 30 June AIENEAZERERR
2019 is based on the profit for the period F & #8 T3 iRk AN 1 a] 4 ET—*;
attributable to equity holders of the Company B A B AR FEEJ = T}'J I ﬁ_é;{
of HK$2,630,366,000 (six months ended 2,630,366,000 7T (& = =
30 June 2018: HK$2,200,900,000) and 1%’\3‘%/&? 2:o+9§o%66
6,142,975,292 (six months ended 30 June 2018: 7 ) J:A.&/Hﬂ A E % ?'_ o zéﬁn
4,606,078,797, as restated) ordinary shares in 6.142 975’3 590 Hﬁ(%z—{:% — gx
issue during the period. —NEXA=+BIF~EA :
4,606,078,797 f% (FXE3R))

-
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8. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 8. ANAIERIFEAELER
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY B (&)

(continued)

The number of ordinary shares adopted in the EiEEHZ—_Z—N\FXA
calculation of basic earnings per share for the six =+tHIERNBEAZERER
months ended 30 June 2018 has been adjusted BARRMN 2 ERREE
to reflect the bonus element of the rights issue EERAE  URBEBEEZZT
during the year ended 31 December 2018. —NF+_A=+t—HBLF
B2 HARATF A AD ©
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary BHE-_ZE—NhFER=ZZE—N
shares in issue during the six months ended 30 FXNA=Z+HLEARMEA K
June 2019 and 2018. SE W EEME BEITAEBE
-2 e )
9. CONTRACT ASSETS 9. BREE
At At
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
R-E-h% RZE-N\E
~AB=tE  t+=ZA=t-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (5%
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
M BETT BT
Non-current FEH
Service concession assets BRI EEE (a) 49,172,729 43,540,152
Current
Service concession assets BT REEEE (a) 5,545,811 5,112,965
Unbilled renewable energy AYEBALRER
tariff subsidy fiBh (b) 2,633,352 1,835,849
Other contract assets EhAanEE (o) 455,567 588,140
8,634,730 7,536,954
Total ke 57,807,459 51,077,106
Contract assets arising from BIARBETEEE

performance under construction ZHRBRESAM

contracts in connection with service  E£ W E A B EE

concession arrangements, which JAHEE

are included in “intangible assets” 5,198,285 4,151,924
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9

CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)
Notes:

(a)

Included in “Service concession assets” are
amounts of HK$566,366,000 (31 December
2018: HK$582,215,000) and HK$682,164,000
(81 December 2018: HK$603,995,000) which are
related to the construction service under Build-
Operate-Transfer (“BOT”) and certain Build-
Operate-Own (“BOQ”) arrangements or upgrade
services under Transfer-Operate-Transfer (“TOT”)
arrangements rendered by the Group to a non-
controlling shareholder of a non wholly-owned
subsidiary and a related company, respectively.

“Service concession assets” arose from the
Group’s revenue from construction under BOT
and certain BOO arrangements or upgrade
services under TOT arrangements and bear
interest at rates ranging from 4.90% to 7.83%
(831 December 2018: 4.90% to 7.83%) per
annum. Among the total of HK$54,718,540,000
(31 December 2018: HK$48,653,117,000),
HK$33,669,140,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$27,558,726,000) relates to BOT, TOT and
BOO arrangements with operations commenced.

Pursuant to the BOT, TOT and BOO
arrangements, the Group receives no payment
from the grantors during the construction period
and receives service fees when relevant services
are rendered during the operating periods. The
service concession assets are not yet due for
payment and will be settled by service fees to
be received during the operating periods of the
service concession arrangements. Amounts billed
will be transferred to debtors (note 10).

China Everbright International Limited

HEEKEBRERD A

SNEEME)
Fifat -

(a)

TIRBEICEEEE]
o B 566,366,000
T(ZE—NE+=_A=+
— B : % ¥ 582,215,000
‘) AEBRIZENB
723&? Hxﬂx%ﬂ B
Ea_ LMFBOTJ)
%@%% ®—Ha
(rBOOJ) zz%JFTZi%a_
RS eE® — B —8E%
([TOT)) Z#H T 2#ET
2 1 DA &7 ¥ 682,164,000
T(ZE—NE+=_A=+
— B : % ¥ 603,995,000
L) HETASE AR
A 7 $E H AR 3% BOT & &6 1%
BOOZL # T 2 3 35 Bk 7% =k
TOTRHE T 2 BETIE -

[RBFTEEEEE TR
N £ @ H) BOT & & {3 BOO
ZHTZ2EERBE Rz
ETOTLZHE T2 RETRE
WEHRELS  HIRFEXR
4.90%%7.83% (=T — \ £
+=—A=+—H :4.90%%
7.83%) st H A B o FEEFE
F#554,718,540,0007T( — &
—\E+=-_A=+—8:
F##548,653,117,0007T) F
7 % 33,669,140,000 7T ( =
T-N\F+ZA=+—8":
75 £ 27,558,726,000 7 ) [
TE/AEE ZBOT * TOT
KBOOZHE -

BIEARBOT « TOT&BOO
T ARERBEHRT
& R ARENME R R IE
iR F 8 & HE R IR 7 B AR
BB REE - RIGRT
REEEEMARBISIA -
P 7 LA BR 75 R B 48 & M E
ZEBEHREESMN B
BEOHEGERE RN
(FF&E10) ©
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9. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(@)

(continued)

All of the current portion of service concession
assets are expected to be recovered within one
year.

The balance represented government on-grid
tariff subsidy for certain projects which will be
billed and settled upon the successful completion
of government administrative procedures
pursuant to notices jointly issued by the Ministry
of Finance, the National Development and
Reform Commission and the National Energy
Administration.

The balance as at 30 June 2019 comprised
contract assets of HK$263,316,000 (31
December 2018: HK$67,025,000) arising from
performance under environmental remediation
service contracts, HK$113,282,000 (31 December
2018: HK$251,466,000) arising from performance
under construction management service
contracts, and HK$78,969,000 (31 December
2018: HK$269,649,000) arising from performance
under equipment construction and installation
service contracts.

Such contracts include payment schedules which
require stage payments over the service periods
once milestones are reached.
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Hret - (&)

(@)

(%)

RIBEHHEEREEZME
BN ER () FBEI R X —F Uk
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LHREERMR - EBRRIE
BIZRE AR - BIR R AMK
EREELERERERR
e BEMZBM KW T
PR 17 BUAZ P 1% 3 B8 R i
[ o

R=ZF—AF~A=t+HZ
EHRBERBITIRREERYS
BHFEEZAHNEERKE
263,316,000 (=& — )\
F+=ZA=+—8: B
67,025,00070) * BiTiEE
ITREERBENAMEELEZ
A #) & E ##113,282,000
T(ZE—NF+=ZA=+
— B : % % 251,466,000
L) RBITRERERTE
REENMEEZENEE
7 % 78,969,000 (= & —
NE+=ZA=+—8 : &%
269,649,0007T) °

FHANEANRERE

HRE R IR A E E R
ETRAERE  BAXTE
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9. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) 9. BHEEME)
Notes: (continued) Hiet - (&)
(¢) (continued) (c) (#&)
Included in “Other contract assets” of the Group EAREEZ[EMWENEE]
are amounts of HK$56,394,000 (31 December o B IE B 56,394,0007T
2018: HK$235,309,000) and HK$11,452,000 (— T—-NE+-_HA=+—
(31 December 2018: HK$17,039,000) which : #6035 309,0007T) -
are related to the construction management ﬁ@aﬁﬁﬁggm/\%ﬁﬁk
service rendered by the Group to joint ventures HIEETEETERE &
and the equipment construction and installation 76 #11,452,000 T (=& —
service rendered by the Group to an associate, NFE+_A=+—8 : 5%
respectively. 17,039,000 ) © £ F K

SEMBERRIREZKE
BIERTER o

No impairment loss was recognised by the R-ZZTE—AFEA=+BK

Group at 30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018 —E-—NFEF+-_A=+—

in respect of the contract assets. H'  REBETERENEE
R IFEREE -
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10. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 10. FRURER R ~ Efh pEULFRIR -

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS e RIARNKIE
At At
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
RZB-NE RZE2-\F
ANA=tH +-A=1-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (B&%)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETL
Non-current FEH
Debtors R 26,546 50,216
Other receivables, deposits and Hth MR -
prepayments e REMNHE 2,085,011 1,519,756
2,111,557 1,669,972
Contingent consideration receivable FARBEWE = 2,185
2,111,557 1,572,127
Current i
Debtors JEURER 3 3,299,978 2,511,537
Less: Impairment i fEE (107,529) (87,980)
3,192,449 2,423,557
Other receivables, deposits and Hth R -
prepayments "e REMNHE 4,138,771 3,062,151
7,331,220 5,485,708
Contingent consideration receivable FARBEWRE 9,218 6,386
7,340,438 5,492,094
Total EEk 9,451,995 7,064,221
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10. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 10. FEURERSR « E A0 EUFIR -
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS Be RENKIAEGE)
(continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for FEUNBE R E R e o
impairment of debtors are as follows: BnR -
HK$°000
BETT
As at 1 January 2018 R-_Z—N\F—HF—H 35,669
Impairment losses, net FEBE R 56,454
Exchange realignment B 57, 8 B (4,143)
As at 31 December 2018 and R-E—N\F+-_A=+—H
1 January 2019 r—ZE—NF—A—H 87,980
Impairment losses, net (note 4) FiEEEFE(MES) 20,289
Exchange realignment P H % (740)

As at 30 June 2019 (unaudited)

RZFE—hFA=1+H
(REEEZ) 107,529
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DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits
and prepayments” are debtors, that were not
individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired, with the following ageing analysis as at

Re MBRNFIRGE)

[ e AR R~ H At U RIR
Be RIAMNFIE P EI/L AR
W RERIRARHLEFERE
Z MR - RS HR

the end of the reporting period: ZEREBRDTUOTR -

At At

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

R-E-NE RZT-)N\F

AA=tHR +ZA=1-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEER) (B&%)

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETR BETT

Current il 2,258,333 1,773,812

Within 1 month past due BRAZH—EA 275,653 161,750
More than 1 month but within aEEA—EARTEZR

3 months past due =fEA 121,026 120,415
More than 3 months but within BHEEA=EARTER

6 months past due ~MEA 287,914 243,686
More than 6 months but within BERANEARTER

12 months past due +=fAR 129,307 93,537

More than 12 months past due BHBBT-EA 146,762 80,573

Amounts past due ki 960,662 699,961

3,218,995 2,473,773
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10. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 10. JEUCBRER - A fib e YRR -
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS e RIARRIE(E)
(continued)

The ageing analysis of debtors, based on the EREAP (W EERA
date of invoice (or date of revenue recognition, if B UREERE)E - B
earlier) and net of loss allowance, as at the end of WER (B HBREBEEE) R
the reporting period is as follows: WMEBRZERERITAT -
At At
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
RZZ-hF RZE-N\F
AA=tR +ZA=1-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (B&%)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Within 1 month TER—{EA 1,205,916 1,391,980
More than 1 month but within BR—EAERZR
2 months W E A 329,364 231,078
More than 2 months but within BEMEABTER
4 months mEA 392,971 287,053
More than 4 months but within BROERETZR
7 months +{EA 642,579 290,313
More than 7 months but within BRCEAERZR
13 months T=1EA 318,259 110,917
More than 13 months BBT=AA 239,906 162,432
3,218,995 2,473,773
Debtors are due within 30 to 90 days from the FEUREBE X B 2% & B HA AR &t

=]
date of billing. = tEATBHREIE-
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10. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)
Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits
and prepayments” of the Group are debtors
of HK$3,218,995,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$2,473,773,000), of which HK$36,264,000
(31 December 2018: HK$213,357,000),
HK$146,127,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$119,146,000), HK$81,431,000 (31
December 2018: HK$148,663,000) and
HK$11,434,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$10,612,000) are due from the Group’s
joint ventures, associates, a non-controlling
shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary
and a related company, respectively. Debtors
mainly represent revenue from the provision
of operation services for environmental energy
projects, greentech projects, environmental
water projects and the provision of
environmental protection project equipment
construction and installation services and sales
of related equipment and the billed amounts of
the service concession assets.

Included in “Debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments” at 30 June 2019 are
advances made to local government authorities
in relation to service concession arrangements
amounting to HK$23,578,000 (31 December
2018: HK$65,151,000) which are unsecured,
interest-bearing at rates ranging from the rates
announced by the People’s Bank of China to
110% of the rates announced by the People’s
Bank of China, and will be settled by instalments
from 2019 to 2026.
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10. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 10. JEUSARER - ELfh eI FRIA -
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS Re REMNFIEE)
(continued)

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits E-_ZET—NEA=1+H83k
and prepayments” under non-current assets at MEBEE TN 2 EUERF - H
30 June 2019 is an advance of HK$8,143,000 fbEU I ~ e RFERM K
(31 December 2018: HK$4,029,000) to the 15 | BREEETAEE
Group’s associate for daily operation, which is L NEERREERARZ
unsecured, interest-bearing at a rate of 4.75% B 8,143,000 (= F
per annum and repayable in 2020. —NF+=-_A=+—8:
7E164,029,0007T) - H A EE
W BEBELTE%E B -
VAR B _BFEERE -
Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits E-_ZT—NALFEXA=TH
and prepayments” at 30 June 2019 is contingent ZEWER R - Eith B L X
consideration receivable of HK$9,218,000 B EReREMAREIF -
(31 December 2018: HK$8,541,000) in relation BERBEE_ZT-—N\F+=
to the acquisition of a subsidiary, Xuzhou A=+—BI-FEWENEB
Engineering Design Institute Co., Ltd. during the ARBEMNTHRERRAER
year ended 31 December 2018. The contingent N Az sk AR E E KRR IE
consideration receivable constitutes a derivative 7B #9,218,000 T (=ZZ — N\
within the scope of HKFRS 9, and is recognised FEF+-_A=+—H: B
at its fair value as asset on initial recognition and 8,541,0007T ) ° s ANKEE
is subsequently remeasured at fair value with W SR IE 8 K B 8 B 7 o 2
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. BIZoOREE A 2 HTET AR
W ¥ S HE R IR A o BT
RREERHEBRAREE
e MARBEZFHAR
BaRRPER -
At At
30 June 31 December
2019 2018

R=B-NE R-T)F
AB=tHE t+ZA=+-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (&%)

HK$°000 HK$’000

BETT BT

Contingent consideration receivable AR BEYGE 9,218 8,541
Portion classified as current assets NERTHEE DR (9,218) (6,386)

Non-current portion B R - 2,155
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10. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 10. FRURER R ~ Efh pEULFRIR -
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS e MBI RIB(E)
(continued)

All of the current portion of the above balances i eR 2 PR A BIERER 4 TR
are expected to be recovered or recognised as BRI —F AR E S ER B
expenses within one year. s o

11. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND 11. EEPRITFE R AT ] EHE
DEPOSITS WITH BANKS WITH MATURITY B=1E8A ZEITERK
PERIOD OVER THREE MONTHS

At At
30 June 31 December
2019 2018

R=2-h%& R-Z2-NE
AB=tH  TZA=1+-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (BE%)

Notes HK$000 HK$'000

i3 BETT BT

Pledged bank deposits BERRIER (8) 758,605 1,115,382
Deposits with banks with maturity FRERa=EAz

period over three months ROFR (b) 37,326 2,722,719

795,931 3,838,101

Notes: Htet -

(@) As at 30 June 2019, bank deposits are pledged (a R=ZT—NAF~A=+8"
to secure certain bank and other loans of the BITERERBEALAER
Group and are pledged to banks for the issuance ETROREMERZIER
of guarantees by the banks to the grantors in m o ARBRE FRITHAR
respect of the specific performance of the duties SEEETRBETLEE
by the Group under certain service concession s T2 ERA T EMmA
agreements. BN DER - WEER

THBERT
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11.

12.

China Everbright International Limited

REEREIBRAERA

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND 1. BEERRITERRFRAE
DEPOSITS WITH BANKS WITH MATURITY B=@EA ZRITFRE)
PERIOD OVER THREE MONTHS

(continued)

Notes: (continued) Hiet - (&)

(b) Deposits with banks with maturity period over (b) TFRHABB=MEAZRTE
three months are not included in cash and cash R EFARERIBESEE
equivalents. ) o

Included in “Deposits with banks with RZE—NEFEASA=1+H -

maturity period over three months” at 30 June EIEZREBBE=A 2R

2019 are nil deposits (31 December 2018: TERIR - WEFRRHE

HK$200,000,000) placed with a related party GATIHRITZER(ZZE —

bank. NE+-_A=+—H: B

200,000,0007T) °

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 12. RERIREEZEEY
At At
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
RZZ-h% RZE-N\F
~A=TH +ZA=t+-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RE&ER) (E&%)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT

Deposits with banks with maturity period  F3tEBOR=F 72

less than three months BOER 3,612,013 4,454,862
Cash at banks and in hand BOBBREFERS 8,425,673 7,681,517
12,037,686 12,136,379

Included in “Cash and cash equivalents” at 30
June 2019 are deposits of HK$1,753,195,000
(31 December 2018: HK$1,123,939,000) placed
with a related party bank.

R_ZE—hFEA=1+H"
[BEeRReEBYWIRER
WMRBBALRITZHER
1 753,195,000 ( —Z & —
NF+_A=+—8 : Bk
1,123,939,0007T) °



Interim Report 2019
—Z-hEHHEE

13. CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES

125

RS - HMEMAIAR

At At
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
R=B-N% NZE-N\E
AA=tH +ZA=t+-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (B51)
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BETT
Creditors JE(TER 8,715,299 7,829,514
Other payables, accrued expenses and ~ EAIfENTHUE - [EXtER R
deferred income - government grants  EIEWA —BF#EEI & 2,720,884 2,637,515
11,436,183 10,467,029
Less: Non-current portion A JEEN
- other payables, accrued expenses  — EAfENFIE -
and deferred income e B R RETRA
- government grants -BftEE (343,131) (299,269)
Current portion EERSR 11,093,052 10,167,760

Included in “Creditors, other payables and
accrued expenses” are creditors with the
following ageing analysis based on the date of

[EASRRAR - R R R
B It 2R RN R
BRERZAME  ERHBSE

invoice as at the end of the reporting period: HIRZEEROTOT -
At At
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
R-Z-1% RIT-N\&
AA=TH +tZA=t+-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Within 6 months TERAEA 7,785,884 6,688,659
Over 6 months BB EA 929,415 1,140,855
8,715,299 7,829,514
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13. CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued)
Creditors totalling HK$6,667,804,000
(31 December 2018: HK$5,986,034,000)
represent construction payables for the
Group’s BOT and certain BOO arrangements,
of which HK$1,697,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$1,136,000) is due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary.
The construction payables are not yet due for
payment.

Included in “Creditors, other payables
and accrued expenses” are creditors
of HK$8,464,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$6,940,000) due to the Group’s associate,
which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on credit terms similar to those offered by the
associate to its major customers.

Included in “Other payables, accrued expenses
and deferred income - government grants”
at 30 June 2019 are other payables of
HK$77,382,000 (31 December 2018: Nil) and
nil (31 December 2018: HK$28,583,000) due
to the Group’s associate and a non-controlling
shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary,
respectively, which are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. Included in “Other
payables, accrued expenses and deferred
income — government grants” at 30 June
2019 is other payable of HK$16,967,000 (31
December 2018: Nil) due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary,
which is unsecured, interest-bearing at the rates
announced by the People’s Bank of China and
repayable within one year.

China Everbright International Limited
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14, SHARE CAPITAL 14, P&

127
At At
30 June 31 December
2019 2018

R=B-N¥ R-E—\F
AA=tHE tZA=+-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBER) (&%)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT

Issued and fully paid: BEIREHHR
6,142,975,292 (31 December 2018: 6,142,975,2925%
6,142,975,292) ordinary shares (ZZ-N\&E+=A

=t+-8:
6,142,975,292%)

17,329,537 17,329,537

During the year ended 31 December 2018, on 14
August 2018, the Company announced a rights
issue on the basis of 10 rights shares for every
27 existing shares held by the shareholders of
the Company at a subscription price of HK$6.00
per rights share. The rights issue was completed
and 1,660,263,592 ordinary shares were issued
on 21 September 2018. After deducting the
expenses in connection with the rights issue
of HK$37,459,000, the net proceeds from
issuance were HK$9,924,123,000. Details of the
rights issue were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 14 August 2018, 14
September 2018 and 20 September 2018, and
prospectus dated 30 August 2018.

REBEE-_Z—N\F+=_A=
+—RIEFE  AARRZ
Z—N\FNA+HMB MK
REETHRERRKRMDBEE
.00 TLHETHE H EE A
ARAREEHE27TRIR
AR D BB 10 AR 4 AR AR
B -HBRER-_ZTE—NE
WA Z-Z+—B=k » I3
17 T 1,660,263,592 & & &
B o B AR MR A X
75 # 37,459,000 7T 18 ¢ AT

BOAEBREBEFAABE
9,924,123,0007T ° HAK 1B
ERARARBELRAE_ZE
—NFNA+TA - —F—
NEARATHAEE -Z—N
FRA-tHZASERAH
AE-EZ—N\ENA=Z+HZ
HIEERPEE -

o
0
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15. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL 15, WREL S B R R 2215

INTERESTS IN A SUBSIDIARY

In August 2018, China Everbright Water Limited
(*CEWL"), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, applied to the Listing Committee of
the Stock Exchange for a proposed separate
listing of the Group’s environmental water
project construction and operation business (the
“Separate Listing”). The Separate Listing was
achieved by global offering, which included the
issue of 10,398,000 shares for Hong Kong public
offer and 983,572,000 shares for international
offer, at an issue price of HK$2.99 per share. The
shares of CEWL have been listed on the Stock
Exchange since 8 May 2019. Upon completion of
the Separate Listing, the Group’s equity interest
in CEWL was diluted from 75.24% to 72.43%
and CEWL is still classified as a subsidiary of the
Company.

CEWL declared a final dividend of SGD0.0050
per ordinary share for the financial year ended 31
December 2018. Subsequent to the completion
of the Separate Listing, the Group’s equity
interest in CEWL was increased from 72.43%
to 72.57% as at 4 June 2019 after electing to
receive shares in lieu of cash.

M
RZZE—N\ENA &R
Z%zﬁ%%“?$l%k
KBEBR AR ([HRKHE])
W@ﬁ”ﬁ$%l%%$%
HEEERES %Fﬁii
mﬁﬁiﬁmnﬁ t 2P E
MEZESREIER - B L
maﬁﬂ&%ﬁﬁth%%
2L EHKBEE(EFRBRE
ﬁﬁ10%8WMk&@€
A B 3% 5 £.93,572,000 f% ik
Pl%%ﬁ)mﬁ e RIKTE
ZkPE_T NERAN
AEEBIET - £
L%*Wé AEEREK
IKIEZ B E R T75.24% #EE
72.43% 1 RKIEH
HARLRIZHBAR -

HRKBERBEE T —N
F+-F=+—H It
FEREBREFR L BR
0.0050%7 i 7T » A% 2
R E - RIB ET K
BIYKR-_ZE—NENANA
H o RNEBR K ARKE 2R
H#HR72.43% EHZET72.57% °
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16. COMMITMENTS 16.

(a) Purchase commitments outstanding in (a) BEASERESGANZ
connection with the Group’s construction BREEAENT
contracts were as follows:

At At

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

R-Z-N% RZZ-N\F

AA=tH +ZA=t-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (T&E7)

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

Contracted but not provided for 2 3] 408 K/ 6,999,729 8,542,181

(b) At 30 June 2019, the total future minimum b) R—ZE—NEFEA~A=1+
lease payments under non-cancellable H - R ] R bR YA
operating leases are payable as follows: EHET B RBENNR

REEFFAEEOT -
At At
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZZ-h% RZZ-N\F
AA=tE tZA=+-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (T&E%)
HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Within 1 year —&R 11,032 15,905
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRELER - 10,588
After 5 years Fk - 8,145
11,032 34,638
The Group leases a number of properties AEBERBELEEHER
and motor vehicles under operating leases, RE#EMERARE - F
with leases negotiated for terms within one HHEEzmIHER—
year. None of the leases includes contingent FAN - BEXTBEXE
rentals. He o
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16. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

At 30 June 2019, the Group had an
outstanding capital commitment relating
to the purchase of a limited partnership
in an investment fund not provided for in
this unaudited interim financial information
of HK$8,771,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$8,753,000).

At 30 June 2019, the Group had an
outstanding capital commitment relating
to the capital contribution to an unlisted
equity investment not provided for in this
unaudited interim financial information of
HK$23,615,000 (31 December 2018: Nil).

At 30 June 2019, the Group had outstanding
capital commitment relating to the capital
contribution to associates not provided for
in this unaudited interim financial information
of HK$54,123,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$74,006,000).

On 12 December 2018, the Group
entered into a share transfer agreement
with certain independent third parties
to acquire 88.88% of the equity interest
in Suntime Environmental Remediation
Co., Ltd. (“Suntime Environmental
Remediation”), which is principally
engaged in the environmental remediation
business in the PRC, at a consideration
of RMB222,200,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$252,397,000). The
acquisition transaction was completed
during the period.

At 30 June 2019, the Group had no
outstanding capital commitment relating to
the acquisition of Suntime Environmental
Remediation not provided for in this
unaudited interim financial information
(31 December 2018: HK$201,918,000).

China Everbright International Limited
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16. COMMITMENTS (continued)
(g) On 20 December 2018,
entered into a share transfer agreement
with certain independent third parties
to acquire 90% of the equity interest in
Jiangsu Jiayuan Environmental Technology
Company Limited (“Jiangsu Jiayuan”),
which is principally engaged in the
hazardous and solid waste treatment
business in the PRC, at a consideration
of RMB180,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$204,462,000). The
acquisition transaction was completed

during the period.

At 30 June 2019, the Group had no
outstanding capital commitment relating
to the acquisition of Jiangsu Jiayuan not
provided for in this unaudited interim
financial information (31 December 2018:
HK$204,462,000).

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in this unaudited interim
financial information, the Group entered into
the following material related party transactions

during the period:

(a) The Group entered into the following related
party transactions with a related party bank:

the Group

131

16. FIE(4H)

5ﬂ°ﬁ%%$§%am
HARSERK ©
R-ZE—AEXA=+
A AEBEYEKRET
BREBCERNRE(Z
E-NFE+-_A=+—
H 7B & 204,462,000
JC)  BEERETRER
FHREEZP NG
BB o
7. BBALTRS

B A R 48 2R A% B B 7S A R

HEMmABHAEE RS R

RN REBREIANFIZT

THEREBMALRS :

(a) "EEBE—REB AL
ﬁﬁJi T %1 B8 Bt A
5

For the six months ended 30 June
HERA=THLAEA

2019 2018

“E-0E —F-)\f

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (REER)

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT

Interest income 7,076 7,894
Interest expense 16,720 17,429
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(a) (continued)

At 30 June 2019, the Group’s bank loans
of HK$624,234,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$694,947,000) are due to a related party
bank. Included in loans from a related party

bank are:

(i

bank loans in aggregate of
HK$624,234,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$660,870,000) which are secured,
interest-bearing at rates ranging
from 90% of the rates announced by
the People’s Bank of China to the
rates announced by the People’s
Bank of China (31 December 2018:
rates ranging from 90% of the rates
announced by the People’s Bank of
China to the rates announced by the
People’s Bank of China), and will be
settled by instalments until 2023 to
2030 (31 December 2018: until 2023 to
2030); and

bank loan of HK$34,077,000 as at 31
December 2018 which was unsecured,
interest-bearing at 105% of the rates
announced by the People’s Bank of
China, and fully settled in May 2019.

China Everbright International Limited
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) The Group entered into the following related
party transaction with an intermediate
holding company of the Group:

17. AL 5 (%)

(b) 7~ £ & 8 H A
RIEIM T %IR8

25

133

ERA
i

AL

For the six months ended 30 June
HEXB=THILAEA

2019 2018

ZB-nF —EN\F

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (REER)

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT AR

Interest expenses MERZ 5,944 -
Included in “Interest-bearing borrowings” RZE—NEFEAA=T
at 30 June 2019 are other loans of Azl BRBE]lBE
HK$1,131,100,000 (31 December 2018: Nil) A QAR AEER A A
from an intermediate holding company of the RIEZHMERBE
Company, which are unsecured, interest- 1,131,100,000 ;v ( =
bearing at 85% of the rates announced by E-NF+ZA=+—
the People’s Bank of China, and repayable A: &) HEAEEH-
in 2022. BRHABARBITRAMZ
B X8R R - WAER
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(c) The Group entered into the following related
party transactions with non-controlling
shareholders of non wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group:

China Everbright International Limited
HEEKEBRERD A

17. AL 5 (&)

(c) ﬁ%@iﬁﬁ%%ﬁm%
N B2 FF R BRR AT 3L
TT§IJEﬁH§pAi§<%

For the six months ended 30 June

BEARZTHLEAEA

2019 2018
—E-hE “E-N\E
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (REE#E%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB

Revenue from environmental RIFKBERES

water project operation R E

services 26,028 82,960
Finance income BB 9,551 10,815
Cost of construction services BERENA 94,745 77,126

(d) The Group entered into the following related
party transactions with a related company of

(d) 7<% B & H BB A A
_LTT@JE A iﬁ(%

the Group:

For the six months ended 30 June

BZEXRA=THLAMER
2019 2018
“E-0E - )\F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEHK) (REEHR)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT

Revenue from environmental RIRKEBEES

water project operation services PRz 30,768 25,399
Finance income BEBA 24,185 24,157
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(e) The Group entered into the following related
party transactions with joint ventures of the

Group:

17. AL 5 (%)
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() REFHBEAESZEMER
VT THBEBALRS

For the six months ended 30 June
HEXB=THILAEA

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-0\%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEHK) (REER)
HK$000 HK$'000
BETT AR

Revenue from environmental energy ~ JB/R&BIEE 21
project construction services R E 400,207 -
Sales of machinery HEMR 54,352 24
Interest income FEUA - 1,639

(f) The Group entered into the following related
party transactions with associates of the

Group:

(0 28 E = E A AT
SITTHABALRS -

For the six months ended 30 June
HEXRB=THLAEA

2019 2018
“E-hE “F-\F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEHK) (REE&E%)
HK$000 HK$'000
BRI BT

Service expenses for operation of SKRERES
waste water treatment plants RERY 21,328 20,516

Revenue from environmental energy RIREREE

project construction services BEREYE 6,521 -
Sales of machinery HERE - 46,104
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(g) The Group entered into the following related
party transactions with fellow subsidiaries of
the Group:

China Everbright International Limited
HEEKEBRERD A

17. AL 5 (&)

(9) AEEEERRXMEAR
BEIS T THIREE AL

25

For the six months ended 30 June
HEXB=THILAEA

2019 2018

“Z-hE —E-N\E

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REBEHK) (REER)

Notes HK$000 HK$'000

oz BETT BETT

Rental expenses HeER f) 5,130 5,130

Listing related fees THREER (i 6,305 441

Underwriting service fees EEREER (i) 4,032 -

Notes: BiaE

(i) The rental expenses of an office were iy MRAEHESLBRAAS
charged by a fellow subsidiary of the Group BRAWBAGTIZRES

on mutually agreed terms at a fixed monthly
amount of HK$1,026,000, and revised
to HK$1,166,000 since May 2019. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company,
the rental expenses were determined by
reference to the prevailing market rent and
the rental valuation report of the premises
conducted by an independent property
consulting firm engaged by the Company.

R MRt - B E
B 18 % 7 ¥ 1,026,000
T Y¥YEBEZ_F—AN
FHARAREBIERR
1,166,0007C ° A A Al
BEERA HE2EBRAD
K2ZER2mH5EE
RARRBRIEZBIY)
XERARRBERYE
fEHZ B EHERSEM
EE -
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(g) (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(i)

(if)

(i)

(continued)

At 30 June 2019, the right-of-use assets
related to an office leased from a fellow
subsidiary of the Group amounted to
HK$24,969,000 and lease liabilities
of HK$24,997,000 are due to a fellow
subsidiary of the Group. Interest on lease
liabilities to a fellow subsidiary of the Group
amounted to HK$114,000 during the six
months ended 30 June 2019.

The listing related fees were charged
by fellow subsidiaries of the Group on
mutually agreed terms. Further details of the
underwriting agreements are disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated
29 April 2019.

The underwriting service fees of the issue
of the third tranche of RMB-denominated
corporate bond were calculated pursuant
to the relevant underwriting agreement.
Further details of the underwriting agreement
are disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 21 July 2017.
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17. BEBEA TR 5 (&)

() (#&)
Hiat

(i)

(if)

(i)

S (&)

B @ [ [F
MiE AR Az
AREFBZEREER
E B B 24,969,000
T MAERESE
24,997,000 7t Ji & &
AEERRWBRRZ
FIE - REBEE=ZT— A
FERNA=ZTHLIEAR
A #XRAEBERZK
BRARZHEEREZF
B A8B%114,0007T °

LtTHERERAAEE
R P B A BIHR & 77 153
TERFRET U o A
ZE—FFHBERAAR
B A-T—NFHA
—tARZAERE

= o

BOE=HARBERAR
BH 2 ARG ERTY
1R 15 48 B8 & 85 19 & 5
B AEHBIE—F
HERARAEHRZ
T—+t+H+-A=-+—8
ZAERRE -
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(h) Transactions with other stated-owned

entities in Mainland China:

The Group operates in an economic
environment predominated by enterprises
directly or indirectly owned and/or controlled
by the PRC government through its
numerous authorities, affiliates or other
organisations (collectively “Other SOEs”).
During the six months ended 30 June
2019, the Group had transactions with the
Other SOEs including, but not limited to the
revenue, bank deposits and borrowings,
and utilities consumptions. The directors of
the Company consider that the transactions
with the Other SOEs are activities in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business,
and that the dealings of the Group have
not been significantly or unduly affected
by the fact that the Group and the Other
SOEs are ultimately controlled or owned by
the PRC government. The Group has also
established pricing policies for products and
services and such pricing policies are not
carried out on non-market terms and do not
depend on whether or not the customers
are the Other SOEs. Having due regard
to the substance of the relationships, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion
that none of these transactions is materia
related party transaction that would require
separate disclosure.

China Everbright International Limited
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 17. BB A TR 5 (#)
(continued)
(i) The Group paid key management personnel (i) AEBELZNTFEEE
compensation as follows: BABZHRBAT

For the six months ended 30 June
HEAR=THLAEA

2019 2018
ZE-NE —T-)\F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Salaries and other short-term FeRANENES
employee benefits Bl 6,883 5,428
Retirement scheme contributions RIRHEIHT 284 224
7,167 5,647
18. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 18. M LAZARERARE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL BRI AR
INSTRUMENTS
Management has assessed that the fair values EEEBITEHASRESEE
of cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank ) - EE|BRITER © T
deposits, deposits with banks with maturity HHBm=EA 2 RITFE
period over three months, creditors, current EABRZARERER - &
portion of debtors, other receivables, deposits fpEYEIE RS RFEMNZ
and prepayments, finance lease receivables, B BEMSEWNRIE - H
other payables and accrued expenses and fpERSERESSE Rt
interest-bearing borrowings approximate to their BEEZEHIMDZARE
carrying amounts largely due to the short term HERmMERLRSE  ZEBEHR
maturities of these instruments. ZETEAEREHRNEIE -
The Group’s finance management department AREBZHEEESMAESR
is responsible for determining the policies and BEremIEANABEFEZ
procedures for the fair value measurement of BERERF REFEHREAH
financial instruments. At each reporting date, the H HEEEIMFes»TES
finance management department analyses the MTACEEZS  WET
movements in the values of financial instruments HEERZ = Z&H AH
and determines the major inputs applied in B -HERVBELEEMK
the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and =4 c ERLZECEFTR
approved by the chief financial officer. The HEBENMGEREMK - UE
valuation process and results are discussed with EH R R EE SRS -

the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.
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18. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and
liabilities are included at the amount at which
the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion
of debtors, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments, finance lease receivables, other
payables, and interest-bearing borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing borrowings
as at 30 June 2019 was assessed to be
insignificant.

The equity investment designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income in
Level 2 represents an investment in a property
investment company, with its investment
properties (being significant part of the total
assets) stated at fair value. The fair value of such
investment is determined based on net asset
value of the investee which approximates to the
fair value.

China Everbright International Limited

HEEKEBRERD A

18. EMIEZ AAREBRAAE

RiBARA (&)

MBEERABZRAAEN
ZTAR B ST (MIER
BRERHE)ENRZRS T2
ARXZERAR - NiIJTA
REBRTIAREETAARE

PR BR SR  H A YRR
BReRBEMNKE REHEE
FE USRI - B A R BRIR PA
Kt BEE 2 IERVEIER D 2
R ETRERBLER
EERBEFGFHZTA
ZBETEBAE - BRBREH
ARBREREZ T AFE -
R—ZF—hnFXA=+H"
B EEEMS AKER
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18. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair value of the equity investment
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income in Level 3 is estimated
with reference to the expected future cash flows
of the investment.

The fair values of the financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss in Level 2 as at 30
June 2019 are based on net asset value of the
investee which approximate to the fair value.

The fair value of the financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss in Level 3 as at 30 June
2019 is based on the expected future cash flows
of the investment.

The fair value of contingent consideration
receivable is based on the valuation by the
management using a discounted cash flow
method with scenario simulation.
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18. EMIAZ AAREBRAAE

Rl &)

BRE=BRAEERAAE
FFARMETEWAZ BRAEK
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18. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the interim financial
information are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3- based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in
the interim financial information on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

China Everbright International Limited

HEEKEBRERD A

18. EMIEZ AAREBRAAE
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18. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial
instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 30 June 2019
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18. @M T AZ A ARBERARE
BRIERRN(E)
DAARBERBRR(E)

TRILAEERESRTAZ
RAEHERR

AL EGTEZBE -

Fair value measurement using

ERNTRBEGAAETE

Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
inactive  observable unobservahle
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
ERTS  EAUER EXTUER
ZHE BAgE BAgE Total
(E-%) (B=§) (%=4) 4%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EBTR BT BT 8T
Equity investments designated  EF KA % EZFA
atfairvalue through other ~— Ef2ERAZBARE -
comprehensive income:
- Listed -tm 6,393 - - 6,393
- Unlisted o i - 3,899 30,115 34,014
6,393 3,899 30,115 40,407
Financial assets at fairvalue AL B ABEZHREE
through profit or loss - 412,442 27,498 439,940
Contingent consideration A BREWFE
receivable - - 9,218 9,218
6,393 416,341 66,831 489,565
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18. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 18. @B TEZ ARBERARE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL BRIERRI ()
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) ARERBEE(E)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BRAEFAEZEE . ()
As at 31 December 2018 N—E—-)\F+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using
BRANTREETARLEHE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
inactive  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 8)
ERETE  EANER EXNEE
BB HAHE EPN (7 Total
(- (B=h) (8=4) 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT AR AR

Equity investments designated &2 7 B A

at fair value through other £ 2EMA ZIRARE
comprehensive income:

- Listed -tm 8,556 - - 8,556
- Unlisted -3t - 3,899 30,115 34,014
8,556 3,899 30,115 42,570

Contingent consideration AR ERENFE
receivable - - 8,541 8,541

8,056 3,899 38,656 51,111
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18. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 18. EMIT EZARBERALE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL RIBER A (4
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) ARERBEE(E)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BANEFEZEE & (&)
The movements in fair value measurements BZMAREFENEF
within Level 3 during the period/year are as NZ BT :
follows:
At At
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
R=Z-1F HRIT-N\E
NA=tHE +ZA=t-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (TE7)
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Equity investments designated BERAAEGA
at fair value through other Hitt2EHA
comprehensive income ZIRARE
- unlisted: —J L
At beginning of the period/year R,/ E4) 30,115 27,328
Purchases o = 2,787
At end of the period/year REER/FXR 30,115 30,115
Financial assets at fair value BAREGABEL
through profit or loss: HBERE
At beginning of the period/year W8,/ F40 = -
Purchases o 27,146 -
Fair value gain AhERE 358 -
Exchange realignment P H AR (6) -
At end of the period/year RER/EX 27,498 -
Contingent consideration receivable: AR EEYFIA -
At beginning of the period/year R/ F4) 8,541 -
Additions BE = 5,643
Fair value gain INED € 721 3,428
Exchange realignment [ 5 5% (50) (630)
At end of the period/year RER/EX 9,218 8,541
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18.

19.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The Group did not have any financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 30 June 2019 and
31 December 2018.

During the six months ended 30 June
2019, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2
and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both
financial assets and financial liabilities (six
months ended 30 June 2018: Nil).

APPROVAL OF THE UNAUDITED INTERIM
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

This unaudited interim financial information was
approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors of the Company on 14 August 2019.

China Everbright International Limited
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Report on Review of Interim Financial Information

R B E R FRARE

To the board of directors of China Everbright
International Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Introduction

We have reviewed the interim financial information
set out on pages 65 to 146, which comprises the
consolidated statement of financial position as at
30 June 2019 of China Everbright International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries,
and the related consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the six-
month period then ended, and other explanatory
notes. The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
require the preparation of a report on interim financial
information to be in compliance with the relevant
provisions thereof and Hong Kong Accounting
Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”
(“HKAS 34”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

The directors of the Company are responsible for
the preparation and presentation of this interim
financial information in accordance with HKAS 34.
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this
interim financial information based on our review.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

BHEXABBRERARNESS
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X ARBBEBEHMAS([FH
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HEBINYE345E — [P HIB IE 3R |
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China Everbright International Limited
REIERBEBRERD

Report on Review of Interim Financial Information # Hi 81 75 & ¥ AR &

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Review Engagements 2410
“Review of Interim Financial Information Performed
by the Independent Auditor of the Entity” issued by
the HKICPA. A review of interim financial information
consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons
responsible for financial and accounting matters, and
applying analytical and other review procedures. A
review is substantially less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to
obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit.
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our
attention that causes us to believe that the interim
financial information is not prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with HKAS 34.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

14 August 2019
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